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                              ANTARES PHARMA, INC.
                           CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
                                   (UNAUDITED)

                                                                                          December 31,         June 30,
                                                                                              2001               2002
                                                                                         ----------------   ----------------

                                                          Assets
Current Assets:
       Cash .......................................................................      $    1,965,089     $      442,678
       Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $18,000 .......             535,461            909,176
       VAT and other receivables ..................................................             331,660            131,306
       Inventories ................................................................             655,691            697,863
       Prepaid expenses and other assets ..........................................              55,041            236,252
                                                                                         ----------------   ----------------
              Total current assets ................................................           3,542,942          2,417,275

Equipment, furniture and fixtures, net ............................................           1,924,675          1,816,117
Patent rights, net ................................................................           2,464,336          2,612,175
Goodwill, net .....................................................................           3,095,355          3,095,355
Other assets ......................................................................             101,142            131,524
                                                                                         ----------------   ----------------

              Total Assets ........................................................      $   11,128,450     $   10,072,446
                                                                                         ================   ================

                                           Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
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Current Liabilities:
       Accounts payable ...........................................................      $      637,794     $      644,429
       Accrued expenses and other liabilities .....................................           1,070,916            739,230
       Deferred revenue ...........................................................           1,511,198          2,486,538
       Capital lease obligations - current maturities .............................              91,054            136,171
       Due to related parties .....................................................             243,692            427,187
                                                                                         ----------------   ----------------
              Total current liabilities ...........................................           3,554,654          4,433,555

Capital lease obligations, less current maturities ................................             105,629             65,308
                                                                                         ----------------   ----------------
              Total liabilities ...................................................           3,660,283          4,498,863
                                                                                         ----------------   ----------------

Shareholders' Equity:
       Series A Convertible Preferred Stock:  $0.01 par; authorized 10,000
          shares; 1,250 and 1,300 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2001 and
          June 30, 2002, respectively .............................................                  13                 13
       Common Stock:  $0.01 par; authorized 30,000,000 shares;
          9,161,188 and 9,790,325 issued and outstanding at
          December 31, 2001 and June 30, 2002, respectively .......................              91,612             97,903
       Additional paid-in capital .................................................          37,464,531         39,846,233
       Accumulated deficit ........................................................         (29,457,033)       (33,570,557)
       Deferred compensation ......................................................            (251,016)          (366,628)
       Accumulated other comprehensive loss .......................................            (379,940)          (433,381)
                                                                                         ----------------   ----------------
                                                                                              7,468,167          5,573,583
                                                                                         ----------------   ----------------
              Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity ..........................      $   11,128,450     $   10,072,446
                                                                                         ================   ================

          See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                              ANTARES PHARMA, INC.
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
                                   (UNAUDITED)

                                                           For the Three Months Ended           For the Six Months Ended
                                                                     June 30,                           June 30,
                                                       ----------------------------------  ---------------------------------
                                                            2001              2002              2001             2002
                                                       ----------------  ----------------  ---------------- ----------------

Revenues:
     Product sales ...............................     $     813,354     $      990,555    $   1,284,731    $    1,528,568
     Licensing and product development ...........           292,799            138,058          408,591           269,016
                                                       ----------------  ----------------  ---------------- ----------------
                                                           1,106,153          1,128,613        1,693,322         1,797,584

Cost of product sales ............................           426,054            559,285          719,926         1,220,709
                                                       ----------------  ----------------  ---------------- ----------------
Gross margin .....................................           680,099            569,328          973,396           576,875
                                                       ----------------  ----------------  ---------------- ----------------
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Operating Expenses:
     Research and development ....................           823,828            813,692        1,394,779         1,544,820
     In-process research and development .........                 -                  -          948,000                 -
     Sales and marketing .........................           383,709            240,748          644,007           399,169
     General and administrative ..................         1,200,865          1,338,448        2,385,040         2,615,777
                                                       ----------------  ----------------  ---------------- ----------------
                                                           2,408,402          2,392,888        5,371,826         4,559,766
                                                       ----------------  ----------------  ---------------- ----------------

Net operating loss ...............................        (1,728,303)        (1,823,560)      (4,398,430)       (3,982,891)
                                                       ----------------  ----------------  ---------------- ----------------

Other income (expense):
     Interest income .............................            70,223              6,735          158,184             9,967
     Interest expense ............................            (6,747)           (44,901)         (90,951)          (53,263)
     Foreign exchange gains (losses) .............            19,486            (55,180)          (7,609)          (36,642)
     Other, net ..................................           (33,382)                22            6,136              (695)
                                                       ----------------  ----------------  ---------------- ----------------
                                                              49,580            (93,324)          65,760           (80,633)
                                                       ----------------  ----------------  ---------------- ----------------

Net loss .........................................        (1,678,723)        (1,916,884)      (4,332,670)       (4,063,524)

In-the-money conversion feature-preferred
   stock dividend ................................                 -                  -       (5,314,125)                -

Preferred stock dividends ........................           (50,000)           (50,000)         (50,000)          (50,000)
                                                       ----------------  ----------------  ---------------- ----------------

Net loss applicable to common shares .............     $  (1,728,723)    $   (1,966,884)   $  (9,696,795)   $   (4,113,524)
                                                       ================  ================  ================ ================

Basic and diluted net loss per common share ......     $       (0.20)    $        (.21)    $       (1.22)   $        (.45)
                                                       ================  ================  ================ ================

Basic and diluted weighted average common
   shares outstanding ............................         8,840,448          9,286,359        7,931,333         9,228,539
                                                       ================  ================  ================ ================

          See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                              ANTARES PHARMA, INC.
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
                                   (UNAUDITED)

                                                                                               For the Six Months Ended
                                                                                                       June 30,
                                                                                           ---------------------------------
                                                                                                2001              2002
                                                                                           ----------------  ---------------

Cash flows from operating activities:
     Net loss ..........................................................................   $   (4,332,670)   $   (4,063,524)
     Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
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     Depreciation and amortization .....................................................          563,323           397,166
     Loss on disposal and abandonment of assets ........................................              126                 -
     In-process research and development ...............................................          948,000                 -
     Stock-based compensation expense ..................................................           18,063           185,833
     Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of business acquisition:
       Accounts receivable .............................................................         (365,026)         (373,715)
       VAT and other receivables .......................................................          126,834           200,354
       Inventories .....................................................................         (110,936)          (42,172)
       Prepaid expenses and other assets ...............................................          (42,205)         (181,211)
       Accounts payable ................................................................         (739,626)            6,635
       Accrued expenses and other ......................................................         (568,820)         (295,136)
       Deferred revenue ................................................................         (174,313)          975,340
       Due to related parties ..........................................................            9,302          (116,505)
       Other ...........................................................................           (4,545)          (30,382)
                                                                                           ----------------  ---------------
Net cash used in operating activities ..................................................       (4,672,493)       (3,337,317)
                                                                                           ----------------  ---------------

Cash flows from investing activities:
     Purchases of equipment, furniture and fixtures ....................................         (230,022)         (123,181)
     Proceeds from sale of equipment, furniture & fixtures .............................           91,699                 -
     Additions to patent rights ........................................................          (59,267)         (161,977)
     Increase in notes receivable and due from Medi-Ject ...............................         (602,756)                -
     Acquisition of Medi-Ject, including cash acquired .................................          355,578                 -
                                                                                           ----------------  ---------------
Net cash used in investing activities ..................................................         (444,768)         (285,158)
                                                                                           ----------------  ---------------

Cash flows from financing activities:
     Proceeds from loans from shareholders .............................................        1,188,199         2,300,000
     Principal payments on capital lease obligations ...................................         (125,768)          (55,722)
     Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net .......................................       10,016,268                 -
                                                                                           ----------------  ---------------
Net cash provided by financing activities ..............................................       11,078,699         2,244,278
                                                                                           ----------------  ---------------

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ...........................         (285,765)         (144,214)
                                                                                           ----------------  ---------------

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ...................................        5,675,673        (1,522,411)
Cash and cash equivalents:
     Beginning of period ...............................................................          243,222         1,965,089
                                                                                           ----------------  ---------------
     End of period .....................................................................   $    5,918,895    $      442,678
                                                                                           ================  ===============

Supplemental cash flow information:
     Cash paid during the period for interest ..........................................   $       90,951    $       16,290

-----------
Schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities: See information
regarding non-cash investing and financing activities in Notes 1, 2, 7 and 8.

           See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

                                       5

                              ANTARES PHARMA, INC.
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                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
                                  (UNAUDITED)
                             June 30, 2001 and 2002

1.   Basis of Presentation

     The accompanying unaudited financial statements have been prepared in
     accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for interim
     financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10
     of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information
     and footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
     United States of America for complete financial statements. In the opinion
     of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals)
     considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. The
     accompanying financial statements and notes should be read in conjunction
     with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001.
     Operating results for the six-month period ended June 30, 2002, are not
     necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year
     ending December 31, 2002.

     The Company has identified certain of its significant accounting policies
     that it considers particularly important to the portrayal of the Company's
     results of operations and financial position and which may require the
     application of a higher level of judgment by the Company's management, and
     as a result are subject to an inherent level of uncertainty. These are
     characterized as "critical accounting policies" and address revenue
     recognition and inventory reserves, each more fully described under
     "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
     Operations" in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
     December 31, 2001. Based upon the Company's review, it has determined that
     these policies remain its most critical accounting policies for the six
     months ended June 30, 2002, and the Company has made no changes to these
     policies during 2002.

     On January 31, 2001, Medi-Ject Corporation, now known as Antares Pharma,
     Inc. ("Antares" or "the Company") purchased from Permatec Holding AG
     ("Permatec") all of the outstanding shares of Permatec Pharma AG, Permatec
     Technology AG, and Permatec NV (the "Share Transaction"). In exchange,
     Antares issued 2,900,000 shares of Antares common stock to Permatec. Upon
     the issuance, Permatec and its affiliates owned approximately 67% of the
     outstanding shares of Antares common stock. For accounting purposes,
     Permatec is deemed to have acquired Antares. The acquisition has been
     accounted for by the purchase method of accounting.

     Upon closing of the Share Transaction on January 31, 2001, the full
     principal amount of Permatec's shareholders' loans to the three Permatec
     subsidiaries which were included in the Share Transaction, of $13,069,870,
     was converted to equity.

     Also on January 31, 2001, promissory notes issued by Medi-Ject to Permatec
     between January 25, 2000 and January 15, 2001, in the aggregate principal
     amount of $5,500,000, were converted into Series C Convertible Preferred
     Stock ("Series C"). Permatec, the holder of the Series C stock, immediately
     exercised its right to convert the Series C stock, and Antares issued
     2,750,000 shares of common stock to Permatec upon such conversion. Also on
     that date, the name of the corporation was changed to Antares Pharma, Inc.

                                       6
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                              ANTARES PHARMA, INC.
             NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
                                  (UNAUDITED)
                             June 30, 2001 and 2002

1.   Basis of Presentation (Continued)

     The total consideration paid, or purchase price, for Medi-Ject was
     $6,889,974, which represents the fair market value of Medi-Ject and related
     transaction costs of $480,095. For accounting purposes, the fair value of
     Medi-Ject is based on the 1,424,729 shares of Medi-Ject common stock
     outstanding on January 25, 2000, at an average closing price three days
     before and after such date of $2.509 per share plus the estimated fair
     value of the Series A convertible preferred stock and the Series B
     mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock plus the fair value of
     outstanding stock options and warrants representing shares of Medi-Ject
     common stock either vested on January 25, 2000, or that became vested at
     the close of the Share Transaction plus the capitalized acquisition cost of
     Permatec.

     The purchase price allocation was as follows:

          Cash acquired ..............................   $        394,535
          Current assets .............................            900,143
          Equipment, furniture and fixtures ..........          1,784,813
          Patents ....................................          1,470,000
          Other intangible assets ....................          2,194,000
          Goodwill ...................................          1,276,806
          Other assets ...............................              3,775
          Current liabilities ........................         (2,026,723)
          Debt .......................................            (55,375)
          In-process research and development ........            948,000
                                                         ----------------
          Purchase price .............................   $      6,889,974
                                                         ================

     In connection with the Share Transaction on January 31, 2001, the Company
     acquired in-process research and development projects having an estimated
     fair value of $948,000, that had not yet reached technological feasibility
     and had no alternative future use. Accordingly, this amount was immediately
     expensed in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

     Unaudited pro forma results of operations for the years ended December 31,
     2000 and 2001, and for the six months ended June 30, 2001, assuming
     Permatec's acquisition of Medi-Ject, the conversion of the $5,000,000 in
     promissory notes, and the Company's implementation of SFAS 141 all
     collectively occurred on January 1, 2000, are as follows:

                                                     Pro forma      Pro forma        Pro forma
                                                     Year Ended     Year Ended   Six Months Ended
                                                    December 31,   December 31,       June 30,
                                                        2000           2001             2001
                                                    ------------   ------------  ----------------

         Net revenues............................   $  2,553,284   $  3,811,362    $  2,006,160
         Loss before cumulative effect of a
            change in accounting principle.......   $(10,030,643)  $(15,086,836)   $(10,164,180)
         Net loss................................   $(11,145,026)  $(15,086,836)   $(10,164,180)
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         Net loss per share......................   $      (1.63)  $      (1.78)   $      (1.28)

2.   Going Concern

     The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern
     basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of
     liabilities and other commitments in the normal course of business. The
     Company's external auditors issued their report on the December 31, 2002
     financial statements, which express substantial doubt about the Company's
     ability to continue as a going concern. The Company had negative working
     capital of $2,016,280 at June 30, 2002, and has had net losses and negative
     cash flows from operating activities since inception.

     The Company expects to report a net loss for the year ending December 31,
     2002, as marketing and development costs related to bringing future
     generations of products to market continue. Long-term capital requirements
     will depend on numerous factors, including the status of collaborative
     arrangements, the progress of research and development programs and the
     receipt of revenues from sales of products.
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                              ANTARES PHARMA, INC.
             NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
                                  (UNAUDITED)
                             June 30, 2001 and 2002

2.   Going Concern (Continued)

     The Company believes it has sufficient cash through September 2002 and will
     be required to raise additional working capital to continue to exist.
     Management's intentions are to raise this additional capital through
     alliances with strategic corporate partners, equity offerings, and/or
     borrowing from the Company's majority shareholder. The Company received
     $1,000,000 on March 12, 2002 and $1,000,000 on April 24, 2002 from the
     Company's majority shareholder, Dr. Jacques Gonella, under a Term Note
     agreement dated February 20, 2002. The Term Note agreement allowed for
     total advances to the Company of $2,000,000 and was interest bearing at the
     three month Euribor Rate as of the date of each advance, plus 5%. The
     principal of $2,000,000 and accrued interest of $36,550 was converted into
     509,137 shares of common stock on June 10, 2002 at $4.00 per share. In June
     2002, the Company borrowed an additional $300,000 from the Company's
     majority shareholder on a short-term basis with interest at the three month
     Euribor Rate as of the date of the advance, plus 5%.

     On July 12, 2002 the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement
     (the "Agreement") for the sale and purchase of up to $2,000,000 aggregate
     principal amount of the Company's 10% Convertible Debentures. The
     debentures are convertible into shares of the Company's common stock at a
     conversion price which is the lower of $2.50 or 75% of the average of the
     three lowest intraday prices of the Company's common stock, as reported on
     the Nasdaq SmallCap Market. Within 15 days of the closing, the Company was
     obligated to file a registration statement with the Securities and Exchange
     Commission to register the shares issuable upon conversion of the
     debentures. Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company received $700,000
     upon closing of the transaction on July 12, 2002, an additional $700,000
     after the Company filed the registration statement on July 19, 2002 to
     register the shares issuable upon conversion of the debentures, and will
     receive an additional $600,000 when such registration statement is declared
     effective. Additionally, the Company intends to hold a special meeting of
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     its shareholders on August 23, 2002, to approve the issuance of the shares
     issuable upon conversion of the debentures. Upon conversion of the
     debentures, existing common shareholders could experience substantial
     dilution of their investment. In addition, as the per share conversion
     price of the debentures into common stock was substantially lower than the
     market price of the common stock on the dates the debentures were sold, the
     Company will be recording an accounting charge for the beneficial
     in-the-money conversion feature of the debentures in the third quarter.
     This charge will be material to the financial statements and could equal
     the principal amount of the converted debentures.

     There can be no assurance that the Company will ever become profitable or
     that adequate funds will be available when needed or on acceptable terms.

     The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the
     recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts
     and classification of liabilities that might be necessary if the Company is
     unable to continue as a going concern.
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                              ANTARES PHARMA, INC.
             NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
                                  (UNAUDITED)
                             June 30, 2001 and 2002

3.   Comprehensive Loss

                                                       Three Months Ended                  Six Months Ended
                                                            June 30,                           June 30,
                                                ---------------------------------  ---------------------------------
                                                     2001             2002              2001             2002
                                                ---------------- ----------------  ---------------- ----------------

        Net loss ...........................    $  (1,678,723)   $  (1,916,884)    $  (4,332,670)   $  (4,063,524)
        Change in cumulative translation
        adjustment .........................          (32,350)         (51,815)         (340,755)         (53,441)
                                                ---------------- ----------------  ---------------- ----------------
        Comprehensive loss .................    $  (1,711,073)   $  (1,968,699)    $  (4,673,425)   $  (4,116,965)
                                                ================ ================  ================ ================

4.   Inventories

     Inventories consist of the following:

                                      December 31,            June 30,
                                         2001                   2002
                                  -------------------    ------------------
        Raw material ..........   $       294,643        $       342,323
        Work in-process .......            29,611                264,705
        Finished goods ........           436,437                170,835
                                  -------------------    ------------------
                                          760,691                777,863
        Inventory reserve .....          (105,000)               (80,000)
                                  -------------------    ------------------
                                  $       655,691        $       697,863
                                  ===================    ==================
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5.   Industry Segment and Operations by Geographic Areas

     The Company is primarily engaged in development of drug delivery
     transdermal and transmucosal pharmaceutical products and drug delivery
     injection devices and supplies. These operations are considered to be one
     segment. The geographic distributions of the Company's identifiable assets
     and revenues are summarized in the following table:

     We have operating assets located on two continents as follows:

                                                             December 31,             June 30,
                                                                 2001                   2002
                                                         -------------------    ------------------

        Switzerland ................................     $      2,388,337       $      2,230,732
        United States of America ...................            8,740,113              7,841,714
                                                         -------------------    ------------------
                                                         $     11,128,450       $     10,072,446
                                                         ===================    ==================
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                              ANTARES PHARMA, INC.
             NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
                                  (UNAUDITED)
                             June 30, 2001 and 2002

5.   Industry Segment and Operations by Geographic Areas (Continued)

     Revenues by region of origin are summarized as follows:

                                                                For the Three Months Ended
                                                                         June 30,
                                                         ------------------------------------------
                                                                2001                  2002
                                                         -------------------    ------------------

        United States of America ..................      $        141,236       $        429,095
        Europe ....................................               955,943                675,196
        Other .....................................                 8,974                 24,322
                                                         -------------------    ------------------
                                                         $      1,106,153       $      1,128,613
                                                         ===================    ==================

                                                                 For the Six Months Ended
                                                                         June 30,
                                                         ------------------------------------------
                                                                2001                  2002
                                                         -------------------    ------------------

        United States of America ..................      $        251,226       $        684,001
        Europe ....................................             1,369,656              1,065,319
        Other .....................................                72,440                 48,264
                                                         -------------------    ------------------
                                                         $      1,693,322       $      1,797,584
                                                         ===================    ==================
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6.   Accounting for License Revenues

     During the quarter ended December 31, 2000 and effective January 1, 2000,
     the Company adopted the cumulative deferral method for accounting for
     license revenues. The adoption of this accounting principle resulted in a
     $1,059,622 cumulative effect adjustment in the first quarter 2000.

     During the quarter and six-month periods ended June 30, 2001 and for the
     same periods ending June 30, 2002, the Company recognized $69,301,
     $138,601, $36,714 and $75,942, respectively, of license revenues that were
     previously recognized by the Company prior to the adoption of the
     cumulative deferral method.

7.   In-The-Money Conversion Feature Preferred Stock Dividend

     During 2000 and 2001, prior to the closing of the Share Transaction on
     January 31, 2001, Medi-Ject borrowed a total of $5,500,000 in convertible
     promissory notes from Permatec. At the closing of the Share Transaction,
     the principal amount of convertible promissory notes converted to 27,500
     shares of Series C preferred stock. At the option of the holder, these
     shares were immediately converted into 2,750,000 shares of Antares common
     stock. As the conversion feature to common stock was contingent upon the
     closing of the Share Transaction, the measurement of the stated conversion
     feature as compared to the Company's common stock price of $4.56 at January
     31, 2001, resulted in an in-the-money conversion feature of $5,314,125,
     which is a deemed dividend to the Series C preferred shareholder. This
     dividend increases the net loss applicable to common shareholders in the
     Antares' net loss per share calculation.
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                              ANTARES PHARMA, INC.
             NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
                                  (UNAUDITED)
                             June 30, 2001 and 2002

8.   Shareholders' Equity

     Roger G. Harrison, Ph.D., was appointed to the position of Chief Executive
     Officer of Antares Pharma, Inc., effective March 12, 2001. In accordance
     with the terms of the employment agreement with Dr. Harrison, 40,000
     restricted shares of common stock were granted to him on March 12, 2002,
     his first anniversary with the Company.

     During the second quarter of 2002 the Company issued 80,000 shares of fully
     vested common stock valued at $283,000 to two consultants for services to
     be performed. Of the 80,000 shares issued, 20,000 were issued as
     compensation directly related to the closing on July 12, 2002 of $2,000,000
     of the Company's 10% Convertible Debentures. Expense related to 20,000
     shares will be recognized as interest expense over the term of the
     debentures. Expense related to 60,000 shares is being recognized as the
     consulting services are provided to the Company. Through June 30, 2002
     approximately $61,000 has been recognized as expense.

     On June 10, 2002 the principal balance of $2,000,000 and accrued interest
     of $36,550 under a term note agreement with the Company's majority
     shareholder, Dr. Jacques Gonella, was converted into 509,137 shares of
     common stock at $4.00 per share.
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9.   New Accounting Pronouncements

     In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS 141,
     "Business Combinations," and SFAS 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible
     Assets." SFAS 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used
     for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. SFAS 142
     changes the accounting for goodwill from an amortization method to an
     impairment-only approach. Thus, amortization of goodwill, including
     goodwill recorded in past business combinations, ceased upon adoption of
     that Statement. The Company adopted SFAS 142 in the first quarter of fiscal
     2002 and accordingly evaluated its existing intangible assets and goodwill
     that were acquired in the Medi-Ject purchase business combination. The
     Company concluded that $1,935,588 representing the unamortized portion of
     the amount allocated to other intangible assets on the date of adoption,
     should be classified as goodwill as they did not meet the definition for
     separate accounting under SFAS No. 142. These amounts were previously
     classified as workforce, ISO certification and clinical studies with
     unamortized balances of $510,413, $271,588, and $1,153,587, at December 31,
     2001. Upon adoption of SFAS 142, the Company reassessed the useful lives
     and residual values of all intangible assets acquired in purchase business
     combinations, and determined that there were no amortization period
     adjustments necessary.

     The Company adopted SFAS 141 during 2001 and adopted SFAS 142 effective
     January 1, 2002. As of the date of adoption of SFAS 142, after
     reclassification of other intangible assets as goodwill, the Company had
     approximately $3,095,355 of unamortized goodwill subject to the transition
     provisions of SFAS 141 and 142. The Company engaged a third-party valuation
     firm to complete an evaluation of goodwill in accordance with the
     provisions of SFAS 142 and concluded that no impairment existed. Adoption
     of SFAS 142 is expected to decrease amortization expenses in 2002 by
     approximately $410,000 as a result of ceasing amortization of goodwill and
     other intangible assets reclassified as goodwill.
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                              ANTARES PHARMA, INC.
             NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
                                  (UNAUDITED)
                             June 30, 2001 and 2002

9.   New Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

     For the three and six-month periods ended June 30, 2001 and 2002, the
     goodwill amortization, adjusted net loss and basic and diluted loss per
     share are as follows:

                                                       Three Months Ended                  Six Months Ended
                                                            June 30,                           June 30,
                                                ---------------------------------  ---------------------------------
                                                     2001             2002              2001             2002
                                                ---------------- ----------------  ---------------- ----------------

        Net loss as reported ...............    $  (1,728,723)   $  (1,966,884)    $  (9,696,795)   $  (4,113,524)
        Addback goodwill amortization ......          102,396                -           170,660                -
                                                ---------------- ----------------  ---------------- ----------------
        Adjusted net loss ..................    $  (1,626,327)   $  (1,966,884)    $  (9,526,135)   $  (4,113,524)
                                                ================ ================  ================ ================
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        Basic and diluted loss per share:
            Net loss as reported ...........    $       (0.20)   $       (0.21)    $       (1.22)   $       (0.45)
            Goodwill amortization ..........             0.01                -              0.02                -
                                                ---------------- ----------------  ---------------- ----------------
         Adjusted net loss per share........    $       (0.19)   $       (0.21)    $       (1.20)   $       (0.45)
                                                ================ ================  ================ ================

     For the three years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, the goodwill
     amortization, adjusted net loss and basic and diluted loss per share are as
     follows:

                                                                  December 31,
                                                    -----------------------------------------
                                                       1999           2000          2001
                                                    -----------   -----------    ------------

        Net loss as reported ...................    $(3,967,366)   (5,260,387)    (14,913,226)
        Addback goodwill amortization ..........        177,963       177,963         464,434
                                                    -----------   -----------    ------------
        Adjusted net loss ......................    $(3,789,403)   (5,082,424)    (14,537,774)
                                                    ===========   ===========    ============

        Basic and diluted loss per share:
            Net loss as reported ...............    $      (.92)        (1.22)          (1.76)
            Goodwill amortization ..............            .04           .04             .05
                                                    -----------   -----------    ------------
        Adjusted net loss per share ............    $      (.88)        (1.18)          (1.71)
                                                    ===========   ===========    ============

     In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, "Accounting for Costs
     Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities," which nullifies EITF 94-3 and
     requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal
     activity be recognized when the liability is incurred. The Company plans to
     adopt SFAS No. 146 in January 2003. Management believes that the adoption
     of this statement will not have a material effect on the Company's future
     results of operations.

10.  Reconciliation of Loss and Share Amount Used in EPS Calculation

     Basic loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss available to
     Common Shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares
     outstanding for the period. Diluted loss per common share reflects the
     potential dilution from the exercise or conversion of securities into
     common stock. The 509,137 shares of common stock issued on June 10, 2002 to
     the Company's majority shareholder, Dr. Jacques Gonella, in connection with
     conversion of $2,036,550 in notes payable and accrued interest had only a
     minor effect on the loss per share for the three and six-month periods
     ended June 30, 2002, and the full impact from issuance of these shares will
     not be reflected in the loss per share calculations until future periods.
     The following table discloses the basic and diluted loss per share. In
     addition, as the Company is in a loss position, the table discloses the
     stock options and warrants outstanding at the end of each period which were
     excluded from the weighted average shares outstanding as their impact is
     anti-dilutive.
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                                                       Three Months Ended                  Six Months Ended
                                                            June 30,                           June 30,
                                                ---------------------------------  ---------------------------------
                                                     2001             2002              2001             2002
                                                ---------------- ----------------  ---------------- ----------------

        Net loss .............................. $  (1,728,723)   $  (1,966,884)    $  (9,696,795)   $  (4,113,524)
        Basic and diluted weighted average
        common shares outstanding .............     8,840,448        9,286,359         7,931,333        9,228,539
                                                ---------------- ----------------  ---------------- ----------------
        Basic and diluted net loss per common
        share ................................. $       (0.20)   $       (0.21)    $       (1.22)   $       (0.45)
                                                ================ ================  ================ ================
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                              ANTARES PHARMA, INC.
             NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
                                  (UNAUDITED)
                             June 30, 2001 and 2002

10.  Reconciliation of Loss and Share Amount Used in EPS Calculation (Continued)

                                                       Three Months Ended                  Six Months Ended
                                                            June 30,                           June 30,
                                                ---------------------------------  ---------------------------------
                                                      2001             2002              2001             2002
                                                ---------------- ----------------  ---------------- ----------------

        Antidilutive stock options and
        warrants ..............................     1,666,103        1,748,107         1,666,103        1,748,107
                                                ================ ================  ================ ================

11.  Related Party Transactions

     Effective February 1, 2001, the Company entered into a consulting agreement
     with JG Consulting AG, a company owned by the Company's majority
     shareholder, Dr. Jacques Gonella. In connection with this agreement the
     Company recognized expense of $77,500 and $93,000 for the six-month periods
     ended June 30, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Amounts owed to JG Consulting
     AG at December 31, 2001 and June 30, 2002 were $90,532 and $15,500,
     respectively. In addition, in 2001 the Company sold equipment, furniture
     and fixtures to JG Consulting AG for $91,699, which approximated the book
     value of the assets sold.

     During the six months ended June 30, 2001 the Company recognized expense of
     $92,500 for feasibility study and market research services performed by a
     company in which Dr. Gonella has an ownership interest of approximately
     25%. At December 31, 2001 and June 30, 2002 the Company had a payable to
     this company of $92,500.

     During the six months ended June 30, 2002 the Company recognized expense of
     approximately $67,000 for consulting services provided by John Gogol, one
     of the Company's board members. The Company had a payable to Mr. Gogol at
     December 31, 2001 and June 30, 2002 of $6,363 and $15,000, respectively.
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     At June 30, 2002 the Company has an outstanding payable of $4,187 to
     another board member for board meeting travel expenses.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
        OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company has identified certain of its significant accounting policies that
it considers particularly important to the portrayal of the Company's results of
operations and financial position and which may require the application of a
higher level of judgment by the Company's management, and as a result are
subject to an inherent level of uncertainty. These are characterized as
"critical accounting policies" and address revenue recognition and inventory
reserves, each more fully described under "Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001. Based upon the Company's
review, it has determined that these policies remain its most critical
accounting policies for the six months ended June 30, 2002, and the Company has
made no changes to these policies during 2002.

Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2001 and 2002

Revenues

Total revenues for the three and six months ended June 30, 2002 were $1,128,613
and $1,797,584, respectively, reflecting increases over the same periods of the
prior year of $22,460 and $104,262, or 2% and 6%, respectively. The increase in
revenues is due mainly to increases in product sales in the three and six-month
periods of $177,201 and $243,837, respectively, offset by decreases in licensing
and product development revenue. The increased product sales result primarily
from increased sales made to licensees in connection with clinical studies and
other development activities under license agreements.

Licensing and product development fee income decreased by $154,741 or 53%, and
$139,575 or 34% in the three and six-month periods ended June 30, 2002,
respectively, as compared to the prior-year periods. The decreases are primarily
due to a $150,000 Antares/Minnesota one-time development fee earned in the
second quarter of 2001 under a discrete contract. The balance of the licensing
and product development revenue is attributable to the recognition of previously
deferred revenue related to licensing and product development contracts.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2000 and effective January 1, 2000, the
Company adopted the cumulative deferral method for accounting for license
revenues. The adoption of this accounting principle resulted in a $1,059,622
cumulative effect adjustment in the first quarter of 2000.

During the quarter and six-month periods ended June 30, 2001 and for the same
periods ending June 30, 2002, the Company recognized $69,301, $138,601, $36,714
and $75,942, respectively, of license revenues that were previously recognized
by the Company prior to the adoption of the cumulative deferral method.

Cost of Sales

The costs of product sales are primarily related to injection devices and

Edgar Filing: ANTARES PHARMA INC - Form 10-Q/A

15



disposable products. Cost of sales as a percentage of product sales increased
from 52% for the second quarter of 2001 to 56% for the second quarter of 2002,
and increased from 56% for the first half of 2001 to 80% for the first half of
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2002. The significant increase during the first half of 2002 was primarily due
to approximately $282,000 of inventory write-offs and inventory reserve
adjustments in the first quarter related to the launch of the Medi-Ject Vision
("MJ7") device into new markets. Approximately $171,000 of this amount related
to a disposable component found to have a design defect, which was immediately
corrected. The remaining $111,000 of inventory written-off was due to a
production problem encountered in connection with another disposable component.
The Company has incurred only minor additional expenses associated with testing
and making the required production modifications.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses totaled $813,692 and $1,544,820 in the three
and six-month periods ended June 30, 2002, respectively, compared to $823,828
and $1,394,779 in the same prior-year periods. The increase in the six-month
period of $150,041 is primarily due to the inclusion of six months of
Antares/Minnesota expenses in 2002 compared with only five months in 2001
following the business combination on January 31, 2001.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses totaled $240,748 and $399,169 in the three and
six-month periods ended June 30, 2002, respectively, compared to $383,709 and
$644,007 in the same periods of the prior year. The decreases in the current
year three and six-month periods as compared to the prior-year periods of
$142,961 or 37%, and $244,838 or 38%, respectively, are primarily due to a
decrease in consulting expenses, offset in the six-month period by six months of
Antares/Minnesota expenses in 2002 compared with only five months in 2001
following the business combination on January 31, 2001. The decrease in
consulting expenses results from a management decision to reduce utilization of
outside consulting services.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses totaled $1,338,448 and $2,615,777 in the
three and six-month periods ended June 30, 2002, respectively, compared to
$1,200,865 and $2,385,040 in the same periods of the prior year. The increases
in the current year three-month and six-month periods as compared to the same
prior-year period of $137,583 or 11% and $230,737 or 10%, respectively, are
primarily due to the opening of the corporate office in Exton, PA in December of
2001 and expenses related to our equity advisor agreements. The increase in the
six-month period is also due to the inclusion of six months of Antares/Minnesota
expenses in 2002 compared with only five months in 2001 following the business
combination on January 31, 2001, offset by decreases in expenses related to the
business combination and amortization expense due to the adoption of SFAS 142.

Other Income (Expense)

Net other income (expense) changed to expense of $93,324 and $80,633 in the
three and six-month periods of 2002, respectively, from income of $49,580 and
$65,760, in the same periods ended June 30, 2001. The changes resulted primarily
from decreased interest income due to lower average cash balances in 2002
compared to 2001 and increased currency exchange losses in 2002 compared to

Edgar Filing: ANTARES PHARMA INC - Form 10-Q/A

16



2001. In addition, interest expense in the three-month period of 2002 increased
by $38,154 over the same period in 2001 due to borrowings of $2,300,000 during
the second quarter of 2002 from the Company's major shareholder. Interest
expense for the six-months of 2001 of $90,951 resulted primarily from interest
expense on outstanding notes incurred by Antares/Switzerland in January 2001
prior to the business
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combination, while interest expense for the six-months of 2002 of $53,263 is
primarily due to the interest on the borrowings from the Company's major
shareholder. The conversion of $2,000,000 of debt into common stock by the
Company's major shareholder in June will decrease quarterly interest expense in
the future by approximately $42,000, while the issuance of $2,000,000 of 10%
Convertible Debentures in July will increase quarterly interest expense by
approximately $50,000 until maturity or conversion.

The 509,137 shares of common stock issued on June 10, 2002 to the Company's
majority shareholder, Dr. Jacques Gonella, in connection with conversion of
$2,036,550 in notes payable and accrued interest had only a minor effect on the
loss per share for the three and six-month periods ended June 30, 2002, and the
full impact from issuance of these shares will not be reflected in the loss per
share calculations until future periods.

Upon conversion of the 10% Convertible Debentures, existing common shareholders
could experience substantial dilution of their investment. In addition, as the
per share conversion price of the debentures into common stock was substantially
lower than the market price of the common stock on the dates the debentures were
sold, the Company will be recording an accounting charge for the beneficial
in-the-money conversion feature of the debentures in the third quarter. This
charge will be material to the financial statements and could equal the
principal amount of the converted debentures.

Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities decreased by $1,335,176, from $4,672,493
for the first half of 2001 to $3,337,317 for the first half of 2002. This was
the result of net losses of $4,332,670 and $4,063,524 in the first half of 2001
and 2002, respectively, adjusted by noncash expenses and changes in operating
assets and liabilities.

Net noncash expenses of $1,529,512 in the first half of 2001 were mainly due to
depreciation and amortization of $563,323 and in-process research and
development of $948,000. Noncash expenses in the first half of 2002 totaled
$582,999, consisting primarily of depreciation and amortization of $397,166 and
stock-based compensation expense of $185,833.

The change in operating assets and liabilities in the first half of 2001
resulted in a net decrease to cash of $1,869,335, comprised mainly of reductions
in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $739,626 and $568,820, respectively,
as a result of improved liquidity from the sale of common stock in the first
half of 2001. In addition, an increase in accounts receivable used $365,026 in
the 2001 period. In the first half of 2002, the change in operating assets and
liabilities caused an increase in cash of $143,208, primarily due to the
increase in deferred revenue of $975,340 and decrease in VAT and other
receivables of $200,354, offset by increases in accounts receivable and prepaid
expenses of $373,715 and $181,211, respectively, and decreases in accrued
expenses and liabilities to related parties of $295,136 and $116,505,
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respectively. The increase in deferred revenue of $975,340 resulted mainly from
milestone payments of approximately $750,000 related to existing license
agreements, along with approximately $300,000 related to agreements originating
in 2002.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities decreased $159,610, from $444,768 in the
first half of 2001 to $285,158 in the same period of 2002. In 2001, $602,756 was
loaned to Medi-Ject before the business
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combination and was offset by the cash balance of $355,578 in Medi-Ject at the
time of the business combination. In addition, in 2001 the Company received
proceeds of $91,699 from the sale of equipment, furniture and fixtures.
Purchases of equipment, furniture and fixtures in the first half of 2001 and
2002 totaled $230,022 and $123,181, respectively, and expenditures for patent
acquisition and development totaled $59,267 and $161,977, respectively.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities decreased $8,834,421 from $11,078,699
in the first half of 2001 to $2,244,278 in the same period of 2002, due
primarily to net proceeds of $10,016,268 received during the first half of 2001
from issuance of common stock, of which $9,994,549 was received in the private
placement of common stock.

The Company received $1,000,000 on March 12, 2002 and $1,000,000 on April 24,
2002 from the Company's majority shareholder, Dr. Jacques Gonella, under a Term
Note agreement dated February 20, 2002. The Term Note agreement allowed for
total advances to the Company of $2,000,000. The note was interest bearing at
the three month Euribor Rate as of the date of each advance, plus 5%. The
principal and accrued interest of $36,550 was converted into 509,137 shares of
common stock on June 10, 2002 at $4.00 per share. In June 2002 the Company
borrowed an additional $300,000 from the Company's majority shareholder on a
short-term basis, with interest at the three month Euribor Rate as of the date
of the advance, plus 5%.

Liquidity

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern
basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of
liabilities and other commitments in the normal course of business. The
Company's external auditor issued its report on the December 31, 2001 financial
statements, which expressed substantial doubt about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. The Company had negative working capital of
$2,016,280 at June 30, 2002, and has had net losses and negative cash flows from
operating activities since inception.

The Company expects to report a net loss for the year ending December 31, 2002,
as marketing and development costs related to bringing future generations of
products to market continue. Long-term capital requirements will depend on
numerous factors, including the status of collaborative arrangements, the
progress of research and development programs and the receipt of revenues from
sales of products.

The Company believes it has sufficient cash to continue operations through
September 2002 and will be required to raise additional working capital to
continue to exist. Management's intentions are to raise this additional capital
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through alliances with strategic corporate partners, equity offerings, and/or
debt financing. The Company received $1,000,000 on March 12, 2002 and $1,000,000
on April 24, 2002 from the Company's majority shareholder, Dr. Jacques Gonella,
under a Term Note agreement dated February 20, 2002. The Term Note agreement
allowed for total advances to the Company of $2,000,000 and was interest bearing
at the three month Euribor Rate as of the date of each advance, plus 5%. The
principal of $2,000,000 and accrued interest of $36,550 was converted into
509,137 shares of common stock on June 10, 2002 at $4.00 per share. In June 2002
the Company borrowed an additional $300,000 from the Company's majority
shareholder on a short-term basis with interest at the three month Euribor Rate
as of the date of the advance, plus 5%.
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On July 12, 2002 the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the
"Agreement") for the sale and purchase of up to $2,000,000 aggregate principal
amount of the Company's 10% Convertible Debentures. The debentures are
convertible into shares of the Company's common stock at a conversion price
which is the lower of $2.50 or 75% of the average of the three lowest intraday
prices of the Company's common stock during the 20 trading days prior to the
date of conversion, as reported on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market. Within 15 days of
the closing, the Company was obligated to file a registration statement with the
Securities and Exchange Commission to register the shares issuable upon
conversion of the debentures. Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company
received $700,000 upon closing of the transaction on July 12, 2002, an
additional $700,000 after the Company filed a registration statement on July 19,
2002 to register the shares issuable upon conversion of the debentures, and will
receive an additional $600,000 when such registration statement is declared
effective. Additionally, the Company intends to hold a special meeting of its
shareholders to approve the issuance of the shares issuable upon conversion of
the debentures. Upon conversion of the debentures, existing common shareholders
could experience substantial dilution of their investment. In addition, as the
per share conversion price of the debentures into common stock was substantially
lower than the market price of our common stock on the dates the debentures were
sold, we will be recording an accounting charge for the beneficial in-the-money
conversion feature of the debentures in the third quarter. This charge will be
material to our financial statements and could equal the principal amount of the
converted debentures.

There can be no assurance that the Company will ever become profitable or that
adequate funds will be available when needed or on acceptable terms. If for any
reason the Company is unable to obtain additional financing it may not be able
to continue as a going concern, which may result in material asset impairments,
other material adverse changes in the business, results of operations or
financial condition, or the loss by shareholders of all or a part of their
investment in the Company.

The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and
classification of liabilities that might be necessary if the Company is unable
to continue as a going concern.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS 141,
"Business Combinations," and SFAS 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets."
SFAS 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all
business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. SFAS 142 changes the
accounting for goodwill from an amortization method to an impairment-only
approach. Thus, amortization of goodwill, including goodwill recorded in past
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business combinations, ceased upon adoption of that Statement. The Company
adopted SFAS 142 in the first quarter of fiscal 2002 and accordingly evaluated
its existing intangible assets and goodwill that were acquired in the Medi-Ject
purchase business combination. The Company concluded that $1,935,588
representing the unamortized portion of the amount allocated to other intangible
assets on the date of adoption, should be classified as goodwill as they did not
meet the definition for separate accounting under SFAS No. 142. These amounts
were previously classified as workforce, ISO certification and clinical studies
with unamortized balances of $510,413, $271,588, and $1,153,587, at December 31,
2001. Upon adoption of SFAS 142, the Company reassessed the useful lives and
residual values of all intangible assets acquired in purchase business
combinations, and determined that there were no amortization period adjustments
necessary.

The Company adopted SFAS 141 during 2001 and adopted SFAS 142 effective January
1, 2002. As of the date of adoption of SFAS 142, after reclassification of other
intangible assets as goodwill, the Company had approximately $3,095,355 of
unamortized goodwill subject to the transition provisions of SFAS 141 and 142.
The Company completed an evaluation of
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goodwill in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142 and concluded that no
impairment exists. Adoption of SFAS 142 is expected to decrease amortization
expenses in 2002 by approximately $410,000 as a result of ceasing amortization
of goodwill and other intangible assets reclassified as goodwill.

For the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2001 and 2002, the goodwill
amortization, adjusted net loss and basic and diluted loss per share are as
follows:

                                                    Three Months Ended                    Six Months Ended
                                                         June 30,                             June 30,
                                             ----------------------------------   ----------------------------------
                                                  2001              2002               2001              2002
                                             ----------------  ----------------   ----------------  ----------------

Net loss as reported ......................  $  (1,728,723)    $  (1,966,884)     $  (9,696,795)    $  (4,113,524)
Addback goodwill amortization .............        102,396                 -            170,660                 -
                                             ----------------  ----------------   ----------------  ----------------
Adjusted net loss .........................  $  (1,626,327)    $  (1,966,884)     $  (9,526,135)    $  (4,113,524)
                                             ================  ================   ================  ================

Basic and diluted loss per share:
    Net loss as reported ..................  $       (0.20)    $       (0.21)     $       (1.22)    $       (0.45)
    Goodwill amortization .................           0.01                 -               0.02                 -
                                             ----------------  ----------------   ----------------  ----------------
 Adjusted net loss per share ..............  $       (0.19)    $       (0.21)     $       (1.20)    $       (0.45)
                                             ================  ================   ================  ================

For the three years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, the goodwill
amortization, adjusted net loss and basic and diluted loss per share are as
follows:

                                                              December 31,
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                                            ------------------------------------------------
                                                1999              2000              2001
                                            ------------      -----------       ------------

Net loss as reported ...................... $(3,967,366)      (5,260,387)       (14,913,226)
Addback goodwill amortization .............     177,963          177,963            464,434
                                            -----------       ----------        -----------
Adjusted net loss ......................... $(3,789,403)      (5,082,424)       (14,537,774)
                                            ===========       ==========        ===========

Basic and diluted loss per share:
         Net loss as reported ............. $      (.92)           (1.22)             (1.76)
         Goodwill amortization ............         .04              .04                .05
                                            -----------       ----------        -----------
Adjusted net loss per share ............... $      (.88)           (1.18)             (1.71)
                                            ===========       ==========        ===========

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, "Accounting for Costs Associated
with Exit or Disposal Activities," which requires that a liability for a cost
associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the liability is
incurred and nullifies EITF 94-3. The Company plans to adopt SFAS No. 146 in
January 2003. Management believes that the adoption of this statement will not
have a material effect on the Company's future results of operations.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company's primary market risk exposure is foreign exchange rate fluctuations
of the Swiss Franc to the U.S. dollar as the financial position and operating
results of the Company's subsidiaries in Switzerland are translated into U.S.
dollars for consolidation. For the three and six-months ended June 30, 2002, the
Company recorded an increase to cumulative comprehensive loss of $51,815 and
$53,441, respectively, and $32,350 and $340,755, respectively, for the same
prior-year periods related to foreign currency translation adjustments. The
Company's exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations also arises from
transferring funds to its Swiss subsidiaries in Swiss Francs. Most of the
Company's sales and licensing fees are denominated in U.S. dollars, thereby
significantly mitigating the risk of exchange rate fluctuations on trade
receivables. The effect of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on the Company's
financial results for the three and six-months ended June 30, 2001 and 2002 was
not material. The Company does not currently use derivative financial
instruments to hedge against exchange rate risk. Because exposure increases as
intercompany balances grow, the Company will continue to evaluate the need to
initiate hedging programs to mitigate the impact of foreign exchange rate
fluctuations on intercompany balances.

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk is not believed to be material. The
Company does not use derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate
risk. All existing debt agreements of the Company bear interest at fixed rates,
and are therefore not subject to exposure from fluctuating interest rates.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

In the quarter ended June 30, 2002, we did not make any significant changes in,
nor take any corrective actions regarding, our internal controls or other
factors that could significantly affect these controls. We periodically review
our internal controls for effectiveness and we plan to conduct an evaluation of
our disclosure controls and procedures each quarter.

                                       19
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 2.  Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds

(c)      On June 10, 2002 Dr. Jacques Gonella, majority shareholder and chairman
         of the Company, converted his $2,000,000 loan to the Company and
         related accrued interest of $36,550 into 509,137 shares of unregistered
         common stock at a price of $4.00 per share. The Company used the
         proceeds of the loan for working capital. The stock issued to Dr.
         Gonella was exempt from registration under Rule 506 of the Securities
         Act of 1933. Dr. Gonella is an accredited investor and was the only
         recipient of shares in this offering.

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

(a)     Exhibits

        The following is filed as an exhibit to Part I of this Form 10-Q/A:

      Exhibit No.   Description
      -----------   ------------------------------------------------------------
          3.1       Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation as
                    amended to date (a)

          3.2       Articles of Amendment Restating Articles of Incorporation
                    (g)

          3.3       Second Amended and Restated Bylaws (a)

          3.4       Certificate of Designations for Series A Convertible
                    Preferred Stock (d)

          3.5       Certificate of Designations for Series B Convertible
                    Preferred Stock

          3.6       Certificate of Designations for Series C Convertible
                    Preferred Stock (g)

          4.1       Form of Certificate for Common Stock (a)

          4.2       Stock Warrant, dated January 25, 1996, issued to Becton
                    Dickinson and Company (a)

          4.3       Stock Option, dated January 25, 1996, issued to Becton
                    Dickinson and Company (a)

          4.6       Preferred Stock, Option and Warrant Purchase Agreement,
                    dated January 25, 1996, with Becton Dickinson and Company
                    (a)

          4.7       Warrant issued to Elan International Services, Ltd. on
                    November 10, 1998 (d)

          4.8       Warrant issued to Grayson & Associates, Inc. on September
                    23, 1999 (e)

          4.9       Warrant issued to Plexus Ventures, Ltd. on September 12,
                    2000 (g)

          4.10      Form of warrant issued to: Aventic Partners AG on February
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                    5, 2001 for 85,324 shares; Basellandschaftliche Kantonalbank
                    on February 5, 2001 for 85,324 shares; HCI Healthcare
                    Investments Limited on February 5, 2001 for 127,986 shares;
                    Lombard Odier & Cie on March 5, 2001 for 127,986 shares (g)

          10.0      Stock Purchase Agreement with Permatec Holding AG, Permatec
                    Pharma AG, Permatec Technologie AG and Permatec NV with
                    First and Second Amendments dated July 14, 2000 (f)

          10.1      Third Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement, date January
                    31, 2001 (g)

          10.2      Registration Rights Agreement with Permatec Holding AG dated
                    January 31, 2001 (g)

          10.3      Registration Rights Agreement with Aventic Partners AG,
                    Basellandschaftliche Kantonalbank and HCI Healthcare
                    Investments Limited dated February 5, 2001, and Lombard
                    Odier & Cie dated March 5, 2001 (g)

          10.4      Office/Warehouse/Showroom Lease, dated January 2, 1995,
                    including amendments thereto (a)

          10.5      Exclusive License & Supply Agreement with Bio-Technology
                    General Corporation, dated December 22, 1999 (e)

          10.6      Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement with Bio-Technology
                    General Corporation, dated December 22, 1999 (e)

          10.7      Preferred Stock, Option and Warrant Purchase Agreement,
                    dated January 25, 1996, with Becton Dickinson and Company
                    (a)

          10.8*     Employment Agreement, dated January 31, 2001, with Franklin
                    Pass, M.D. (g)

          10.9*     Employment Agreement, dated March 12, 2001, with Roger
                    Harrison, Ph.D. (g)

          10.10*    Employment Agreement and Term and Compensation Addendum for
                    2000, dated May 1, 2000, with Lawrence Christian (g)

          10.11*    Employment Agreement and Term and Compensation Addendum for
                    2000, dated May 1, 2000, with Peter Sadowski (g)

          10.12*    Employment Agreement, dated May 31, 2000 with Dr. Dario
                    Carrara (i)

          10.13*    1993 Stock Option Plan (a)

          10.14*    Form of incentive stock option agreement for use with 1993
                    Stock Option Plan (a)

          10.15*    Form of non-qualified stock option agreement for use with
                    1993 Stock Option Plan (a)

          10.16*    1996 Stock Option Plan, with form of stock option agreement
                    (a)

          10.17+    Development and License Agreement with Becton Dickinson and
                    Company, effective January 1, 1996 (terminated January 1,
                    1999). See Exhibit 10.21 (a)
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          10.18     Office - Warehouse lease with Carlson Real Estate Company,
                    dated February 11, 1997 (b)

          10.19*    1998 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors (c)

          10.20*    Letter consulting agreement dated February 20, 1998 with
                    Geoffrey W. Guy (c)

          10.21#    Agreement with Becton Dickinson dated January 1, 1999 (d)

          10.22     Securities Purchase Agreement with Elan International
                    Services, Ltd. dated November 10, 1998 (d)

          10.23#    License & Development Agreement with Elan Corporation, plc,
                    dated November 10, 1998 (d)

          10.24     2001 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors and
                    Consultants (h)

          10.25     2001 Incentive Stock Option Plan for Employees (h)

          10.26*    Consulting Agreement with JG Consulting AG dated February 1,
                    2001

          10.27     Office lease agreement with 707 Eagleview Boulevard
                    Associates, a Pennsylvania Partnership, dated June 18, 2001

          10.28**   $2,000,000 Term Note with Dr. Jacques Gonella dated February
                    20, 2002

          10.29***  Securities Purchase Agreement, dated July 12, 2002, between
                    Antares Pharma, Inc. and AJW Partners, LLC; AJW/New
                    Millennium Offshore, Ltd.; Pegasus Capital Partners, LLC;
                    XMark Fund, L.P.; XMark Fund, Ltd.; SDS Merchant Fund, LP;
                    and OTATO Limited Partnership.

          10.30***  Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 12, 2002, between
                    Antares Pharma, Inc. and AJW Partners, LLC; AJW/New
                    Millennium Offshore, Ltd.; Pegasus Capital Partners, LLC;
                    XMark Fund, L.P.; XMark Fund, Ltd.; SDS Merchant Fund, LP;
                    and OTATO Limited Partnership.

          10.31***  Security Agreement, dated July 12, 2002, between Antares
                    Pharma, Inc. and AJW Partners, LLC; AJW/New Millennium
                    Offshore, Ltd.; Pegasus Capital Partners, LLC; XMark Fund,
                    L.P.; XMark Fund, Ltd.; SDS Merchant Fund, LP; and OTATO
                    Limited Partnership.

          10.32***  Form of Secured Convertible Debenture, dated July 12, 2002.

          10.33**** License Agreement with Solvay Pharmaceuticals BV, dated June
                    9, 1999.

          10.34**** License Agreement with BioSante Pharmaceuticals, Inc., dated
                    June 13, 2000.

          10.35**** Amendment No. 1 to License Agreement with BioSante
                    Pharmaceuticals, Inc., dated May 20, 2001.

          10.36**** Amendment No. 2 to License Agreement with BioSante
                    Pharmaceuticals, Inc., dated July 5, 2001.
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          10.37**** Amendment No. 3 to License Agreement with BioSante
                    Pharmaceuticals, Inc., dated August 28, 2001.

          10.38**** Amendment No. 4 to License Agreement with BioSante
                    Pharmaceuticals, Inc., dated August 8, 2002.

          99.1      Section 906 CEO and CFO Certification

          *    Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or
               arrangement.

          **   Previously filed as an Exhibit to our Form 10-Q for the period
               ended March 31, 2002, filed with the SEC on May 13, 2002.

          ***  Previously filed as the same numbered exhibit to our Current
               Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 17, 2002.

          **** Previously filed as the same numbered exhibits to our amended
               Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed on September 19, 2002.
               Confidential portions of this document have been redacted and
               have been separately filed with the Securities and Exchange
               Commission.

          +    Pursuant to Rule 406 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
               confidential portions of Exhibit 10.17 were deleted and filed
               separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant
               to a request for confidential treatment, which was subsequently
               granted by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

          #    Pursuantto Rule 24b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
               amended, confidential portions of Exhibits 10.21 and 10.23 were
               deleted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange
               Commission pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.

          (a)  Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form
               S-1 (File No. 333-6661), filed with the Securities and Exchange
               Commission on October 1, 1996.

          (b)  Incorporated by reference to Form 10-K for the year ended
               December 31, 1996.

          (c)  Incorporated by reference to Form 10-K for the year ended
               December 31, 1997.

          (d)  Incorporated by reference to Form 10-K for the year ended
               December 31, 1998.

          (e)  Incorporated by reference to Form 10-K for the year ended
               December 31, 1999.

          (f)  Incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement filed December
               28, 2000.

          (g)  Incorporated by reference to Form 10-K for the year ended
               December 31, 2000.

          (h)  Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form
               S-8 (File No. 333-64480), filed with the Securities and Exchange
               Commission on July 3, 2001.
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(b)     Reports on Form 8-K

         Form 8-K was filed on June 25, 2002, which describes the conversion of
         a $2,000,000 Term Note with the Company's majority shareholder, Dr.
         Jacques Gonella, into 509,137 shares of common stock.
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                                   SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized

                               ANTARES PHARMA, INC.

September 19, 2002              /s/ Roger G. Harrison, Ph.D.
                               -------------------------------------------------
                               Roger G. Harrison, Ph.D.
                               Chief Executive Officer and President

September 19, 2002              /s/ Lawrence M. Christian
                               -------------------------------------------------
                               Lawrence M. Christian
                               Chief Financial Officer, Vice President - Finance
                               and Secretary
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                                 Certifications

I, Roger G. Harrison, Ph. D., certify that:

1.   I have reviewed this amended quarterly report on Form 10-Q/A of Antares
     Pharma, Inc.;

2.   Based on my knowledge, this amended quarterly report does not contain any
     untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
     necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
     which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
     covered by this amended quarterly report; and

3.   Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
     information included in this amended quarterly report, fairly present in
     all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
     cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
     amended quarterly report.

[Items 4, 5 and 6 omitted pursuant to the transition provisions of Release No.
34-46427.]

Date:  September 19, 2002

/s/ Roger G. Harrison, Ph. D.
-----------------------------------
Roger G. Harrison, Ph. D.
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Chief Executive Officer and President
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I, Lawrence M. Christian, certifiy that:

1.   I have reviewed this amended quarterly report on Form 10-Q/A of Antares
     Pharma, Inc.;

2.   Based on my knowledge, this amended quarterly report does not contain any
     untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
     necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
     which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
     covered by this amended quarterly report; and

3.   Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
     information included in this amended quarterly report, fairly present in
     all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
     cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
     amended quarterly report.

[Items 4, 5 and 6 omitted pursuant to the transition provisions of Release No.
34-46427.]

Date:  September 19, 2002

/s/ Lawrence M. Christian
-----------------------------------
Lawrence M. Christian
Chief Financial Officer, Vice President - Finance and Secretary
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font-family: Arial, Helvetica; color: #000000; background: #FFFFFF"> Eligibility

Any employee, non-employee director, consultant or advisor who is a natural person and who provides services to our
company, or to a parent or subsidiary corporation of our company, is eligible to participate in the 2009 Plan.
Individuals who our company desires to induce to become employees, non-employee directors, consultants or advisors
are also eligible to participate, as long as the grant is contingent upon the individual becoming an employee,
non-employee director, consultant or advisor. Only employees are eligible for grants of incentive stock options.

Number of Shares Available for Issuance

Shares Available.  A total of 350,000 shares of our common stock are authorized for grant under the 2009 Plan,
subject to adjustment in the event of certain changes in capitalization. All of the shares authorized for grant may be
granted as incentive stock options. The aggregate number of shares subject to options and/or stock appreciation rights
that may be granted during any calendar year to any one participant cannot exceed 150,000. Any shares of common
stock subject to an award under the 2009 Plan that are forfeited or expire may be used again for an award under the
2009 Plan. In addition, to the extent that any stock option or restricted stock award is forfeited or terminates without
vesting, or any stock option terminates, expires or lapses without being exercised, under the 2001 Plan, the shares
subject to such stock option or restricted stock award will be available for awards under the 2009 Plan. Shares that
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become available for award again under the 2009 Plan due to forfeiture or expiration will increase the limit in the
same manner the shares subject to the original award counted against the limit. Shares tendered or withheld to pay the
exercise price of an option or to pay tax withholding may not be used again for an award under the 2009 Plan.

Calculation of Shares Used in Award Grants.  For the purposes of computing the total number of shares granted
under the 2009 Plan, the following rules will apply:

� each share that is subject to an award of options or stock appreciation rights will be counted against the shares
available under the 2009 Plan as one share;

� each share, or security that is convertible into, or equivalent to, a share that is subject to any award other than
options or stock appreciation rights shall be counted against the shares available under the 2009 Plan as one
and two tenth (1.2) shares;

� if the number of shares subject to the award is variable at the grant date, the maximum number of shares that
could be received will be counted against the shares available under the 2009 Plan until the settlement of the
award and determination of actual number of shares covered by the award;

� if two or more types of awards are granted in tandem such that the exercise of one type cancels at least an equal
number of shares of the other, the maximum number of shares that could be received will be counted

8
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against the shares available under the 2009 Plan until the settlement of the award and determination of actual
number of shares covered by the award; and

� for performance units denominated in dollars, the number of shares counted against the shares available under
the 2009 Plan shall be equal to the result of dividing the dollar amount for which the performance unit is
denominated by the fair market value of one share on the date the performance unit is granted.

General Terms of Awards

Award Agreements.  Except for awards that involve only the immediate issuance of unrestricted and fully vested
shares, each award will be evidenced by an agreement setting forth the number of shares subject to the award, along
with other terms and conditions as determined by the committee.

Vesting and Term.  Each agreement will set forth the period until the award is scheduled to expire and the
performance period. The committee may determine the vesting conditions of awards; however, subject to certain
exceptions, an award that is not subject to the satisfaction of performance measures may not fully vest or become fully
exercisable earlier than three years from the grant date, and the performance period for an award subject to
performance measures may not be shorter than one year.

Transferability.  Awards may not be sold, assigned, transferred, exchanged or encumbered, other than by will or the
laws of descent and distribution. The committee may provide that an award is transferable by gift to certain family
members. Each participant may designate a beneficiary to exercise any award or receive payment under any award
payable on or after the participant�s death.

Termination of Service.  Upon termination of service for cause, all unexercised options and stock appreciation rights
and all unvested portions of any other outstanding awards will immediately be forfeited without consideration. Upon
termination of service for any other reason, all unvested and unexercisable portions of any outstanding awards will be
immediately forfeited without consideration. Upon termination of service for any reason other than cause, death or
disability, the currently vested and exercisable portions of awards may be exercised within three months of the date of
termination. Upon termination of service due to death or disability, the currently vested and exercisable portions of
awards may be exercised within six months of termination. All of the foregoing provisions may be changed if
expressly provided for in an individual award agreement.

Types of Awards

The types of awards that may be granted under the 2009 Plan include restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit
awards, stock option awards, stock appreciation rights and performance units. The committee also has the discretion to
grant other types of awards, as long as they are consistent with the terms and purposes of the 2009 Plan. In addition to
the general terms of all the awards, as described above, the basic characteristics of the awards that may be granted
under the 2009 Plan are as follows:

Restricted Stock Awards.  Restricted stock awards are subject to vesting conditions and other restrictions as
determined by the committee. Unvested shares of restricted stock are subject to transfer restrictions, and book entries
or stock certificates evidencing the shares will bear a restrictive legend to that effect until such shares have vested.
Participants who receive restricted stock awards are entitled to all the other rights of a stockholder, including the right
to receive dividends and the right to vote the shares of restricted stock.

Restricted Stock Units.  Restricted stock unit awards are subject to vesting conditions and other restrictions as
determined by the committee. After a restricted stock unit award vests, payment will be made to the participant in the
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form of cash, shares or a combination of cash and shares as determined by the committee, and within the time period
after vesting as will qualify the payment for the �short-term deferral� exemption from Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code.

Stock Option Awards.  The agreement pursuant to which a stock option is granted will specify whether it is an
incentive stock option or a non-statutory stock option. Non-statutory stock options are all stock option awards that do
not meet the requirements of incentive stock options. The exercise price will be determined by the committee and may
not be less than the fair market value of a share of common stock on the grant date. The exercise price is

9
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payable in full at the time of exercise and may be paid in cash and/or, if permitted by the committee, by withholding
shares issuable upon exercise or delivery of shares already owned by the participant. Each option is exercisable in
whole or in part on the terms provided in the agreement, but in no event will an option be exercisable after its
scheduled expiration, which will not be more than seven years after the grant date.

An option will be considered an Incentive Stock Option only if:

� the participant receiving the award is an employee;

� the award is designated as an incentive stock option in the agreement; and

� the aggregate fair market value of the shares subject to incentive stock options held by the participant which
first become exercisable in any calendar year does not exceed $100,000.

In addition, a participant may not receive an incentive stock option under the 2009 Plan if, immediately after the grant
of the award, the participant would own shares with more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes
of stock of the company or a parent or subsidiary corporation of the company, subject to certain exceptions.

Stock Appreciation Rights.  An award of a stock appreciation right entitles the participant to receive, upon exercise of
the award, all or a portion of the excess of the fair market value of a specified number of shares as of the date of
exercise over a specified exercise price that will not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the shares on the
grant date. Each stock appreciation right is exercisable in whole or in part on the terms provided in the agreement, but
in no event will a stock appreciation right be exercisable after its scheduled expiration, which will not be more than
seven years after the grant date. Upon exercise, payment may be made to the participant in the form of cash, shares or
a combination of cash and shares, as determined by the committee. The agreement may provide for a limitation upon
the amount or percentage of total appreciation on which payment may be made upon exercise.

Performance Units.  An award of performance units entitles the participant to future payments of cash, shares or a
combination of cash and shares, as specified by the committee in the agreement, based upon the achievement of a
specified level of one or more performance measures over the course of a performance period. The agreement will
specify the nature and requisite level of achievement for each performance measure, the length of the performance
period, and may provide that a portion of the award will be paid for performance that exceeds the minimum target but
falls below the maximum target applicable to the award. Payment of any performance unit award will be made within
the time period after vesting that will qualify the payment for the �short term deferral� exemption from Section 409A of
the Internal Revenue Code. The agreement may permit the acceleration of the performance period and an adjustment
of performance measures and payments with respect to some or all of the performance units upon the occurrence of
certain events. The agreement may also provide for a limitation on the value of an award of performance units that a
participant may receive.

For recipients who are �covered employees� under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code, the performance
measures are set by the committee at the start of each performance period and are based on one or a combination of
two or more of the following performance criteria:

� interest income;

� net interest income;

� income before income tax expense;
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� net income;

� net income available to common stockholders;

� earnings per common share (basic or diluted);

� profitability as measured by return ratios (including, but not limited to, return on average assets, return on
average equity) or by the degree to which any of the foregoing earnings measures exceed a percentage of
interest income;

� cash flow;

10
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� market share;

� net interest margin;

� stock price;

� total stockholders� equity;

� asset quality;

� non-performing assets;

� interest income growth;

� operating income;

� cash flow per share; or

� improvement in, or attainment of, non-interest expense levels or cost savings.

Any performance measure utilized may be expressed in absolute amounts, on a per share basis, as a growth rate or
change from preceding periods, or as a comparison to the performance of specified companies or other external
measures, and may relate to one or any combination of corporate, group, unit, division, affiliate or individual
performance.

Corporate Transactions

In the event of certain corporate transactions, as defined under the 2009 Plan, the committee may, but is not required
to:

� protect outstanding awards with substitution of awards in the surviving corporation;

� provide written notice prior to the occurrence of the transaction that each outstanding stock option or stock
appreciation right will immediately become exercisable in full and will be cancelled at the time of, or
immediately prior to the occurrence of, the corporate transaction in exchange for payment promptly after the
transaction;

� provide that each outstanding stock option or stock appreciation right that is or becomes exercisable prior to the
occurrence of the corporate transaction will be cancelled at the time of, or immediately prior to, the occurrence
of the corporate transaction in exchange for payment promptly after the transaction, and that each outstanding
stock option or stock appreciation right that does not become exercisable prior to the occurrence of the
corporate transaction will be cancelled at the time of, or immediately prior to, the occurrence of the corporate
transaction without payment or any other consideration;

� provide written notice prior to the occurrence of the transaction that each outstanding stock option or stock
appreciation right, irrespective of whether it is exercisable, will be cancelled at the time of, or immediately
prior to the occurrence of, the corporate transaction without payment or any other consideration;
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� provide written notice prior to the occurrence of the transaction that each outstanding stock option or stock
appreciation right will immediately become exercisable in full and will be cancelled at the time of, or
immediately prior to the occurrence of, the corporate transaction without payment or any other consideration;

� provide, upon the occurrence of the corporate transaction, for the vesting and corresponding waiver of
forfeiture conditions and other restrictions on restricted stock awards or restricted stock unit awards that are
outstanding as of the occurrence of the corporate transaction; or

� provide that, upon the occurrence of the corporate transaction, any portions of any restricted stock awards or
restricted stock unit awards that are subject to vesting conditions, forfeiture conditions or other restrictions as
of the occurrence of the corporate transaction shall be canceled without payment or any other consideration.

11
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Performance-Based Compensation

If the committee determines that an award, other than an option or stock appreciation right award, is granted to a
participant who is an executive officer and is, or is likely to be, a �covered employee� for purposes of Section 162(m) of
the Internal Revenue Code, then the lapsing of restrictions on the award and the distribution of cash, shares or other
property pursuant to the award will be subject to the achievement of one or more performance measures, as defined
under the 2009 Plan. When establishing performance measures for a performance period, the committee may exclude
amounts or charges relating to an event or occurrence that the committee determines, consistent with the requirements
of Section 162(m), should appropriately be excluded. The committee may also adjust performance measures for a
performance period to the extent permitted by Section 162(m) to prevent the dilution or enlargement of a participant�s
rights with respect to performance-based compensation. The committee will determine any amount payable in
connection with such an award consistent with the requirements of Section 162(m), and may adjust downward, but not
upward, any amount determined to be otherwise payable in connection with such an award. Subject to adjustment in
the event of certain changes in capitalization, no participant may be granted performance-based compensation in any
calendar year with respect to more than 75,000 shares, for awards denominated in shares, and the maximum dollar
value payable to any participant in any 12 month period with respect to performance-based compensation
denominated in cash is $500,000.

Compliance with CPP Requirements

The 2009 Plan, and all awards and payments made under it, are intended to comply with all laws, including
regulations, related to our participation in the CPP. We may amend the 2009 Plan or any award made under it, without
the consent of the affected participant, to comply with such laws.

Duration, Amendment and Termination

The 2009 Plan will remain in effect until all shares subject to it are distributed, all awards have expired or terminated,
the 2009 Plan is terminated, or the tenth anniversary of the date of stockholder approval of the plan, whichever occurs
first. The board of directors may at any time terminate, suspend or amend the 2009 Plan. We will submit any
amendment of the 2009 Plan to our stockholders for approval if the rules of the principal securities exchange on which
the shares are then listed or other applicable laws or regulations require stockholder approval of such an amendment.
No termination, suspension or amendment of the 2009 Plan or any agreement under the 2009 Plan may materially or
adversely affect any right acquired by any participant under an award granted before the date of termination,
suspension or amendment, unless otherwise agreed to by the participant in the agreement or otherwise, or required by
law.

Federal Tax Considerations

The following summary sets forth the tax events generally expected for United States citizens under current United
States federal income tax laws in connection with awards under the 2009 Plan.

Incentive Stock Options.  A recipient will realize no taxable income, and we will not be entitled to any related
deduction, at the time an incentive stock option is granted under the 2009 Plan. If certain statutory employment and
holding period conditions are satisfied before the recipient disposes of shares acquired pursuant to the exercise of such
an option, then no taxable income will result upon the exercise of such option, and we will not be entitled to any
deduction in connection with such exercise. Upon disposition of the shares after expiration of the statutory holding
periods, any gain or loss realized by a recipient will be a long-term capital gain or loss. We will not be entitled to a
deduction with respect to a disposition of the shares by a recipient after the expiration of the statutory holding periods.
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Except in the event of death, if shares acquired by a recipient upon the exercise of an incentive stock option are
disposed of by such recipient before the expiration of the statutory holding periods, referred to as a disqualifying
disposition, such recipient will be considered to have realized as compensation, taxable as ordinary income in the year
of disposition, an amount, not exceeding the gain realized on such disposition, equal to the difference between the
exercise price and the fair market value of the shares on the date of exercise of the option. We will be entitled to a
deduction at the same time and in the same amount as the recipient is deemed to have realized ordinary income. Any
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gain realized on the disposition in excess of the amount treated as compensation or any loss realized on the disposition
will constitute capital gain or loss, respectively. Such capital gain or loss will be long-term or short-term based upon
how long the shares were held. If the recipient pays the option price with shares that were originally acquired pursuant
to the exercise of an incentive stock option and the statutory holding periods for such shares have not been met, the
recipient will be treated as having made a disqualifying disposition of such shares, and the tax consequence of such
disqualifying disposition will be as described above.

The foregoing discussion applies only for regular tax purposes. For alternative minimum tax purposes, an incentive
stock option will be treated as if it were a non-qualified stock option, the tax consequences of which are discussed
below.

Non-Qualified Stock Options.  A recipient will realize no taxable income, and we will not be entitled to any related
deduction, at the time a non-qualified stock option is granted under the 2009 Plan. At the time of exercise of a
non-qualified stock option, the recipient will realize ordinary income, and we will be entitled to a deduction, equal to
the excess of the fair market value of the stock on the date of exercise over the option price. Upon disposition of the
shares, any additional gain or loss realized by the recipient will be taxed as a capital gain or loss, long-term or
short-term, based upon how long the shares are held.

Stock Appreciation Rights and Performance Units.  Generally, the recipient will not realize income upon the grant of
a stock appreciation right or performance unit award. The recipient will realize ordinary income, and we will be
entitled to a corresponding deduction, in the year cash or shares of common stock are delivered to the recipient upon
exercise of a stock appreciation right or in payment of the performance unit award. The amount of such ordinary
income and deduction will be the amount of cash received plus the fair market value of the shares of common stock
received on the date of issuance. The federal income tax consequences of a disposition of unrestricted shares received
by the recipient upon exercise of a stock appreciation right or in payment of a performance unit award are the same as
described below with respect to a disposition of unrestricted shares.

Restricted and Unrestricted Stock; Restricted Stock Units.  Unless the recipient files an election to be taxed under
Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, the recipient will not realize income upon the grant of restricted stock, the
recipient will realize ordinary income, and we will be entitled to a corresponding deduction, when the restrictions have
been removed or expire, and the amount of such ordinary income and deduction will be the fair market value of the
restricted stock on the date the restrictions are removed or expire. If the recipient files an election to be taxed under
Section 83(b), the tax consequences to the recipient will be determined as of the date of the grant of the restricted
stock rather than as of the date of the removal or expiration of the restrictions.

For unrestricted stock, the recipient will realize ordinary income, and we will be entitled to a corresponding deduction
upon the grant of the unrestricted stock, and the amount of such ordinary income and deduction will be the fair market
value of such unrestricted stock on the date of grant.

When the recipient disposes of restricted or unrestricted stock, the difference between the amount received upon such
disposition and the fair market value of such shares on the date the recipient realizes ordinary income will be treated
as a capital gain or loss, long-term or short-term, based upon how long the shares are held.

A recipient will not realize income upon the grant of restricted stock units, but will realize ordinary income, and we
will be entitled to a corresponding deduction, when the restricted stock units have vested and been settled in cash
and/or shares of our common stock. The amount of such ordinary income and deduction will be the amount of cash
received plus the fair market value of the shares of our common stock received on the date of issuance.

Edgar Filing: ANTARES PHARMA INC - Form 10-Q/A

Table of Contents 37



Withholding.  The 2009 Plan permits us to withhold from awards an amount sufficient to cover any required
withholding taxes. In lieu of cash, the compensation committee may permit a participant to cover withholding
obligations through a reduction in the number of shares to be delivered to such participant or by delivery of shares
already owned by the participant.

The board recommends that the stockholders vote for the approval of the HMN Financial, Inc. 2009 equity
incentive plan.
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OTHER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2008 for compensation plans under which equity
securities may be issued.

(c)
Number of
Securities

(a)
Remaining
Available

Number of for Future Issuance
Securities to be (b) Under Equity
Issued upon Weighted-Average Compensation
Exercise of Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding
Outstanding
Options,

Outstanding
Options,

Securities Reflected
in

Plan Category
warrants and

Rights
Warrants and

Rights Column (a))(1)

Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholders 289,648 $16.77 155,353
Equity compensation plans not approved
by stockholders 0 0 0

Total 289,648 $16.77 155,353

(1) Includes securities available for future issuance under stockholder approved compensation plans other than upon
the exercise of an option, warrant or right, as follows: 155,353 shares under the Company�s 2001 Omnibus Stock
Plan.
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PROPOSAL III � ADVISORY (NON-BINDING) VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

In December 2008, we participated in the Capital Purchase Program under the Troubled Asset Relief Program of the
United States Treasury. The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, signed into law on February 17,
2009, includes a provision requiring CPP participants, during the period in which any obligation arising from
assistance provided under the CPP remains outstanding, to permit a separate stockholder vote to approve the
compensation of executives, as disclosed pursuant to the compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. This requirement applies to any proxy, consent, or authorization for an annual meeting of the
participant�s stockholders for which proxies will be solicited for the election of directors or a special meeting in lieu of
such an annual meeting. Under this legislation, the stockholder vote is not binding on the board of directors of the
CPP participant, and may not be construed as overruling any decision by the participant�s board of directors.

In accordance with the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, stockholders are being given the
opportunity to vote to approve the compensation of our executives, as disclosed in this proxy statement, including the
information presented under �Compensation Discussion and Analysis� and in the compensation tables and related
material under the heading �2008 Executive Compensation.�

This is an advisory vote only, and neither the company nor our board of directors will be bound to take action based
upon the outcome. The compensation committee will consider the vote of the stockholders when considering future
executive compensation arrangements.

The board recommends that stockholders vote for the approval of the compensation of executives, as disclosed
in this proxy statement.

PROPOSAL IV � RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Upon the recommendation of the audit committee, the board of directors has appointed KPMG LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, to be our independent registered public accounting firm for 2009, subject to
ratification by the stockholders. KPMG LLP has audited the financial statements of our company or the bank since
1966. Representatives of KPMG LLP are expected to attend the meeting to respond to appropriate questions and to
make a statement, if they so desire.

In connection with the engagement of KPMG LLP, we entered into an engagement agreement with KPMG LLP that
sets forth the terms pursuant to which KPMG LLP will perform its audit services. That agreement is subject to
alternative dispute resolution procedures and an exclusion of punitive damages.

While it is not required to do so, the audit committee is submitting the appointment of that firm for ratification in
order to ascertain the view of the stockholders. If the stockholders do not ratify the appointment, the audit committee
will review the appointment.

The board recommends that stockholders vote for the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as our
2009 independent registered public accounting firm.

15
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Committees of the Board of Directors

The board of directors has standing audit, compensation, executive and governance and nominating committees. The
directors� committee memberships are indicated in the table below:

Nominating and
Compensation Executive Governance

Director Audit Committee Committee Committee Committee

Allan R. DeBoer Member Chair Alternate �
Michael J. Fogarty � Member Alternate �
Timothy R. Geisler Chair � Member �
Karen L. Himle � Member � Member
Susan K. Kolling � � Member �
Malcolm W. McDonald Member � � Member
Mahlon C. Schneider Member � Alternate Chair

The board of directors anticipates that upon his election, Dr. Smith will be appointed to the nominating and
governance committee of the board of directors.

Audit Committee.  The audit committee oversees our financial reporting process by, among other things,
recommending and taking action to oversee the independence of the independent registered public accounting firm
and selecting and appointing the independent registered public accounting firm. The board has determined that all
members of the audit committee are independent as that term is defined in the applicable Nasdaq listing standards and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and all members are financially literate as required by the
applicable Nasdaq listing standards. In addition, the board has determined that Mr. Geisler has the financial
experience required by the applicable Nasdaq listing standards and is an audit committee financial expert as defined
by applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The responsibilities of the audit committee are
set forth in the audit committee charter, which was amended and readopted on February 24, 2009 and is available on
our website at www.hmnf.com. The audit committee reviews and reassesses its charter annually.

Compensation Committee.  The compensation committee reviews and reports to the board on matters concerning
compensation plans and the compensation of certain executives, as well as administering our 2001 Omnibus Stock
Plan and our 2009 Equity Incentive Plan, if it is approved by stockholders. The board has determined that all members
of the compensation committee are independent as that term is defined in the applicable Nasdaq listing standards. The
responsibilities of the compensation committee are set forth in the compensation committee charter, which was
readopted by the board on February 24, 2009. The compensation committee charter is available on our website at
www.hmnf.com. The compensation committee reviews and reassesses its charter annually.

Executive Committee.  The executive committee acts on issues arising between regular board meetings. The executive
committee possesses the powers of the full board between meetings of the board.

Governance and Nominating Committee.  The governance and nominating committee selects candidates as nominees
for election as directors and advises and makes recommendations to the board on other matters concerning
directorship and corporate governance practices, including succession plans for our executive officers. The board has
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determined that all members of the governance and nominating committee are independent as that term is defined in
the applicable Nasdaq listing standards. The responsibilities of the governance and nominating committee are set forth
in the governance and nominating committee charter, which was readopted by the board on February 24, 2009 and is
available on our website at www.hmnf.com. The governance and nominating committee reviews and reassesses their
charter annually.

Board and Committee Meetings

The board held eleven meetings during 2008. The audit committee held six meetings during 2008. The compensation
committee held eight meetings during 2008. The executive committee held one meeting during 2008. The governance
and nominating committee held five meetings during 2008. Each of our directors attended at least 75% of the
meetings of the board and all committees on which the director served.
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Director Independence

The board has determined that none of our directors except Ms. Kolling who is an employee of the bank, have a
material relationship with our company other than service as a director (either directly or as a partner, stockholder or
officer of an organization that has a material relationship with our company). Therefore, all of our directors except
Ms. Kolling are independent within the meaning of applicable Nasdaq listing standards. In addition, the board has
determined that Dr. Smith, who has been nominated to become a member of our board of directors, is independent
within the meaning of applicable Nasdaq listing standards.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to all of our directors and employees, including our
senior management and financial reporting employees. This code is available on our website at www.hmnf.com.

Stockholder Communication with the Board

The board of directors provides a process for stockholders to send communications to the board or any of the
directors. Stockholders may send written communications to the board or any of the directors c/o Chief Financial
Officer, HMN Financial, Inc., 1016 Civic Center Drive N.W., Rochester, Minnesota 55901-6057. All communications
will be compiled by the Chief Financial Officer and submitted to the board or the individual directors on a periodic
basis. Communications directed to the board in general will be forwarded to the appropriate director(s) to address the
matter.

Director Attendance at Annual Meetings

Directors are expected to attend the annual meeting of stockholders. In 2008, eight directors attended the annual
meeting of stockholders.

Procedures Regarding Director Candidates Recommended by Stockholders

The governance and nominating committee will consider director candidates recommended by stockholders if the
recommended director candidate would be eligible to serve as a director under our by-laws. Our by-laws require that
directors have their primary domicile in a county where the bank has a full service branch. This requirement may be
waived by a majority of the board so long as a majority of the directors currently serving on the board have their
primary residence in a county where the bank has a full service branch.

In order to be considered by the governance and nominating committee, a stockholder recommendation of a director
candidate must set forth all information relating to the candidate that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of
proxies for election of directors in an election contest, or is otherwise required, pursuant to Regulation 14A under the
Exchange Act and Rule 14a-11 thereunder (including the potential director�s written consent to being named in the
proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a director if elected).

The governance and nominating committee will consider director candidates recommended by stockholders in the
same manner that it considers all director candidates. This consideration will include an assessment of each candidate�s
experience, integrity, competence, diversity, skills and dedication in the context of the needs of the board. Each
candidate will be evaluated in the context of the board as a whole, with the objective of recommending a group of
nominees that can best perpetuate the success of the business and represent stockholder interest through the exercise
of sound judgment based on a diversity of experience.
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Rather than recommending director candidates to the governance and nominating committee, stockholders may
directly nominate a person for election to the board by complying with the procedures set forth in our by-laws, any
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and any applicable laws. For more
information regarding the submission of stockholder nominations of director candidates, please refer to the section
entitled �Stockholder Proposals,� as well as the Q&A appearing at the beginning of this proxy statement.
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Stockholder Proposals

Under our by-laws, certain procedures are provided that a stockholder must follow to introduce an item of business at
an annual meeting of stockholders or to nominate persons for election as directors. These procedures provide,
generally, that stockholders desiring to bring a proper subject of business before the meeting, or to make nominations
for directors, must do so by a written notice received not later than 90 days in advance of the meeting (or if we do not
publicly announce our annual meeting date 100 days in advance of the meeting date, by the close of business on the
10th day following the day on which notice of the meeting is mailed to stockholders or publicly made) by our
corporate secretary containing the name and address of the stockholder as they appear on our books and the class and
number of shares owned by the stockholder. If the notice relates to an item of business it also must include a
representation that the stockholder intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting. Notice of an item of
business shall include a brief description of the proposed business and a description of all arrangements or
understandings between the stockholder and any other person or persons (including their names) in connection with
the proposal of business by the stockholder and any material interest of the stockholder in the business. If the notice
relates to a nomination for director, it must set forth the name and address of any nominee(s), any other information
regarding each nominee as would have been required to be included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission had each nominee been nominated by the board, and the consent of
each nominee to be named in the proxy statement and to serve.

The chairman of the meeting may refuse to allow the transaction of any business not presented, or to acknowledge the
nomination of any person not made, in compliance with the foregoing procedures. Copies of our by-laws are available
from our corporate secretary.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

During 2008, the compensation committee was comprised of Messrs. Benson, Fogarty and DeBoer and Ms. Himle.
None of the members is an executive officer, employee or former employee of our company, and no interlocking
relationship exists between the board or compensation committee and the board of directors or compensation
committee of any other company.

Related Person Transaction Approval Policy

In February 2009, our board of directors readopted a written policy for related person transactions, which sets forth
our policies and procedures for the review, approval or ratification of transactions subject to the policy with related
persons who are subject to the policy. Our policy applies to any transaction, arrangement or relationship or any series
of similar transactions, arrangements or relationships that has a financial aspect and in which we are a participant and
a related person has a direct or indirect interest. Our policy, however, exempts the following:

� our payment of compensation to a related person for that person�s service to us in the capacities that give rise to
the person�s status as a �related person;�

� transactions available to all of our employees or all of our stockholders on the same terms;

� any extension of credit by our banking subsidiary in which a related person has a direct or indirect interest and
which complies with the requirements of Regulation O under Title 12 of the Code of Federal Regulations and
has been approved by either the board of directors of our banking subsidiary or its loan committee; and

� 
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transactions, which when aggregated with the amount of all other transactions between the related person and
our company, involve less than $120,000 in a fiscal year.

We consider the following people to be related persons under the policy:

� all of our officers and directors;

� any nominee for director;

� any immediate family member of any of our directors, nominees for director or executive officers; and

� any holder of more than 5% of our common stock, or an immediate family member of the holder.
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The audit committee of our board of directors must approve any related person transaction subject to this policy
before commencement of the related party transaction. The committee will analyze the following factors, in addition
to any other factors the committee deems appropriate, in determining whether to approve a related party transaction:

� whether the terms are fair to our company;

� whether the transaction is material to our company;

� the role the related person has played in arranging the related person transaction;

� the structure of the related person transaction; and

� the interests of all related persons in the related person transaction.

The committee may, in its sole discretion, approve or deny any related person transaction. Approval of a related party
transaction may be conditioned upon our company and the related person taking any actions that the committees
deems appropriate.

If one of our executive officers becomes aware of a related person transaction that has not previously been approved
under the policy:

� if the transaction is pending or ongoing, it will be submitted to the audit committee promptly and the
committee will consider the transaction in light of the standards of approval listed above. Based on this
evaluation, the committee will consider all options, including approval, ratification, amendment, denial or
termination of the related person transaction; and

� if the transaction is completed, the committee will evaluate the transaction in accordance with the same
standards to determine whether rescission of the transaction is appropriate and feasible.

There were no related person transactions in 2008 required to be reported in this proxy statement.

Certain Transactions

The bank follows a policy of granting loans to eligible directors, officers, employees and members of their immediate
families for the financing of their personal residences and for consumer purposes. The rate charged on mortgage loans
is generally equal to the then-current rate offered to the general public, although certain fees are reduced or waived.
The employee rate charged on consumer loans is generally 1% below the then-current rate offered to the general
public. From time to time, the bank also makes commercial loans to entities that may be affiliates of our officers or
directors. Such commercial loans are made on standard terms and conditions and are made at prevailing interest rates.
At December 31, 2008, the aggregate amount of the bank�s loans to directors, executive officers, affiliates of directors
or executive officers, and employees was approximately $4.1 million or 3.68% of our stockholders� equity. All of these
loans were current at December 31, 2008. All of the loans to directors, executive officers and their affiliates (a) were
made in the ordinary course of business, (b) were made on substantially the same terms, including collateral, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons, except for the employee interest rate, fee
reduction or fee waiver and (c) did not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility or other unfavorable
features.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees
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The following table presents fees for professional audit services rendered by KPMG LLP for the audit of our annual
financial statements for 2008 and 2007, and fees for other services rendered by KPMG LLP relating to these fiscal
years.

Description of Fees 2008 2007

Audit Fees(1) $ 199,000 $ 189,500
Audit-Related Fees(2) 13,650 13,000

Total Audit and Audit-Related Fees $ 212,650 $ 202,500

(1) Audit fees in 2008 and 2007 consisted of the annual audit and quarterly reviews of our consolidated financial
statements, statutory audit, audit of internal controls over financial reporting and assistance with and review of
documents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

(2) Audit-related fees in 2008 and 2007 consisted of employee benefit plan audits.
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Approval of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Services and Fees

The audit committee pre-approved 100% of the services provided by KPMG LLP, our independent registered public
accounting firm. KPMG provided no other services to the company other than those noted above.

The audit committee�s current practice on pre-approval of services performed by the independent registered public
accounting firm is to approve annually all audit services and, on a case-by-case basis, recurring permissible non-audit
services to be provided by the independent registered public accounting firm during the fiscal year. The audit
committee reviews each non-audit service to be provided and assesses the impact of the service on the registered
public accounting firm�s independence. In addition, the audit committee may pre-approve other non-audit services
during the year on a case-by-case basis. Pursuant to a policy adopted by the audit committee, Mr. Geisler, the chair of
the audit committee, is authorized to pre-approve certain limited non-audit services described in Section 10A(i)(1)(B)
of the Exchange Act. Mr. Geisler did not pre-approve any non-audit services pursuant to this authority in 2008.

Report of the Audit Committee

The audit committee has (i) reviewed and discussed our audited financial statements for 2008 with our management;
(ii) discussed with our independent registered public accounting firm the matters required to be discussed by
Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended , and as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board in Rule 3200T, as currently in effect; (iii) received the written disclosures and the letter from our independent
registered public accounting firm required by the applicable requirements of the PCAOB regarding the independent
accountant�s communications with the audit committees concerning independence; and (iv) has discussed with our
independent registered public accounting firm its independence. Based on the review and discussions with
management and our independent registered public accounting firm referred to above, the audit committee
recommended to the board that the audited financial statements be included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Audit Committee

Allan R. DeBoer
Timothy R. Geisler
Malcolm W. McDonald
Mahlon C. Schneider

Director Emeritus

In 1996, the board of directors established a director emeritus program. Any retiring director who served as a director
of our company or the bank for 12 or more years could have been invited by the board to be a director emeritus.
Current directors that retire or leave the board will not be offered the opportunity to participate in the emeritus
program, and it will cease to exist after the remaining term of the current director emeritus expires. A director
emeritus may attend and participate in regular meetings of the board, but may not vote. Directors emeritus may not
serve for more than five years. In consideration for serving as a director emeritus, the individual is paid a fee equal to
the fee received by non-employee directors during the individual�s last year of service to our company or the bank
(excluding any fees paid for serving on any committee of the board of our company or the bank). Roger P. Weise is
the only director emeritus and has served in that capacity since 2004.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

The following table sets forth, as of March 3, 2009, the beneficial ownership of: (i) each stockholder known by
management to beneficially own more than five percent of the outstanding common stock, (ii) each of the executive
officers listed in our summary compensation table, (iii) each director, and (iv) all directors and executive officers as a
group. Unless otherwise indicated, the listed beneficial owner has sole voting power and investment power with
respect to the shares of common stock and maintains an address at 1016 Civic Center Drive N.W., Rochester,
Minnesota 55901-6057.

Amount and

Nature of
Percentage

of
Beneficial Outstanding

Name and Address (if required) of Beneficial Owner Ownership Shares

United States Department of the Treasury(1) 833,333 16.68%
1500 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, D.C. 20220
HMN Financial, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership Plan(2) 795,340 19.11%
Jeffrey L. Gendell 421,729 10.01%
Tontine Financial Partners, L.P.
Tontine Management, L.L.C.
Tontine Overseas Associates, L.L.C.
55 Railroad Avenue, 3rd Floor
Greenwich, Connecticut 06830(3)
Dimensional Fund Advisors, LP (4) 352,676 8.47%
Palisades West, Building One
6300 Bee Cave Road
Austin, TX 78746

Directors and executive officers:
Duane D. Benson(5) 8,107 *
Allan R. DeBoer(6) 19,700 *
Jon J. Eberle(7) 20,931 *
Michael J. Fogarty(8) 17,500 *
Timothy R. Geisler(9) 12,301 *
Karen L. Himle(10) 9,200 *
Dwain C. Jorgensen(11) 65,128 1.56%
Susan K. Kolling(12) 66,362 1.59%
Bradley C. Krehbiel(13) 17,572 *
Malcolm W. McDonald(14) 15,575 *
Mahlon C. Schneider(15) 16,200 *
Hugh C. Smith � �
All directors, director nominees and executive officers of the Company as a group
(12 persons) (16) 268,576 6.31%
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* Less than 1% Owned

(1) Represents shares of common stock covered by a warrant that is currently exercisable. The United States
Department of the Treasury has agreed not to exercise any voting rights with respect to shares of our common
stock issued under the warrant.

(2) As reported on a Schedule 13G/A dated January 30, 2009 and filed on January 30, 2009. The amount reported
represents shares of common stock held by the HMN Financial, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership Plan, known as
the ESOP. As reported on a Form 5 dated January 30, 2009 and filed January 30, 2009, 320,937 of the
795,340 shares of common stock beneficially owned by the ESOP have been allocated to accounts of
participants. First Bankers Trust Services, Inc., Quincy, Illinois, the trustee of the ESOP, may be deemed to
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beneficially own the shares of common stock held by the ESOP. First Bankers Trust expressly disclaims
beneficial ownership of these shares. Participants in the ESOP are entitled to instruct the trustee as to the voting
of shares of common stock allocated to their accounts under the ESOP. Unallocated shares or allocated shares for
which no voting instructions are received are voted by the trustee in the same proportion as allocated shares for
which instructions have been received from participants. The ESOP has sole voting power for 474,403 of the
shares it holds, and shared voting power for 320,937 of the shares it holds. The ESOP has sole dispositive power
for 474,403 of the shares it holds, and shared dispositive power for 320,937 of the shares it holds.

(3) As reported on a Schedule 13D/A dated May 28, 2003 and filed on May 30, 2003. Tontine Financial Partners,
L.P. (�TFP�) holds shares of common stock directly, and Tontine Management, L.L.C. (�TM�) is the general partner
to TFP. Tontine Overseas Associates, L.L.C. (�TOA�) is the investment manager to TFP Overseas Fund, Ltd.,
which holds shares of common stock directly. Mr. Gendell serves as the managing member of TM and TOA.

(4) As reported on a Schedule 13G/A dated February 9, 2009. Dimensional Fund Advisors, LP is an investment
adviser. The amount reported represents shares of common stock held in various advisory accounts. No account
has an interest relating to more than 5% of the outstanding shares of common stock. Dimensional Fund Advisors,
LP exercises sole dispositive power with respect to all the shares and sole voting power with respect to 351,776
of the shares. In its role as investment advisor, Dimensional Fund Advisors, LP may be deemed to be the
beneficial owner of the shares held by it. Dimensional Fund Advisors, LP expressly disclaims beneficial
ownership of these shares.

(5) Includes 3,857 shares of common stock held directly, and 4,250 shares of common stock held by Mr. Benson�s
spouse.

(6) Includes 4,700 shares of common stock held directly and 15,000 shares of common stock covered by options that
are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 3, 2009.

(7) Includes 6,398 shares of common stock held directly, 1,043 shares of common stock held under the bank�s 401(k)
plan, 9,850 shares of common stock allocated to Mr. Eberle�s account under our employee stock ownership plan
and 3,640 shares of common stock covered by options that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days
of March 3, 2009.

(8) Includes 1,500 shares of common stock held in a fiduciary capacity, 1,000 shares of common stock held in a
fiduciary capacity jointly with his spouse and 15,000 shares of common stock covered by options that are
currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 3, 2009.

(9) Includes 365 shares of common stock held jointly with his spouse, 1,293 shares of common stock held by
Mr. Geisler�s IRA account, 143 shares of common stock held in Mr. Geisler�s spouse�s IRA account and
10,500 shares of common stock covered by options that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days
of March 3, 2009.

(10) Includes 200 shares of common stock held directly and 9,000 shares of common stock covered by options that
are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 3, 2009.

(11) Includes 37,047 shares of common stock held directly, 2,150 shares of common stock held by the IRA account
of Mr. Jorgensen�s spouse, 5,200 shares of common stock under the bank�s 401(k) plan, 17,151 shares of
common stock allocated to Mr. Jorgensen�s account under our employee stock ownership plan and 3,580 shares
of common stock covered by options that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 3,
2009.
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(12) Includes 40,721 shares of common stock held directly, 14,671 shares of common stock allocated to
Ms. Kolling�s account under our employee stock ownership plan, 7,190 shares of common stock held under the
bank�s 401(k) plan and 3,780 shares of common stock covered by options that are currently exercisable or
exercisable within 60 days of March 3, 2009.

(13) Includes 6,433 shares of common stock held directly, 6,599 shares of common stock allocated to Mr. Krehbiel�s
account under our employee stock ownership plan and 4,540 shares of common stock covered by options that
are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 3, 2009.

(14) Includes 2,675 shares of common stock held directly, of which 2,675 are pledged as security, 900 shares held in
Mr. McDonalds�s IRA, and 12,000 shares of common stock covered by options that are currently exercisable or
exercisable within 60 days of March 3, 2009.
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(15) Includes 1,200 shares of common stock held directly and 15,000 shares of common stock covered by options
that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 3, 2009.

(16) Includes shares of common stock held directly, as well as shares of common stock held jointly with family
members (if these shares are deemed to be beneficially owned by the director or officer), shares of common
stock held in retirement accounts, shares of common stock held by these individuals in their accounts under the
bank�s 401(k) plan, shares of common stock allocated to the ESOP accounts of the group members, shares of
common stock held in a fiduciary capacity or by certain family members and shares covered by options that are
currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 3, 2009, with respect to which shares the persons
included may be deemed to have sole or shared voting and/or investment power.

2008 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

All of our directors also serve as directors of our banking subsidiary. During 2008, non-employee members of our
board of directors were paid the following combined cash fees for their services to us and our banking subsidiary:

Description of Fees
Chairman

of Non-employee
Chairman of

the
Other

Committee
the

Board Directors
Audit

Committee Chairs

Monthly fee $3,333 $1,250 � �
Board meeting attendance fee $1,000 $500 � �
Audit Committee attendance fee � $500 $1,500 �
Other board committee attendance fees � $300 � $900

Due to the fee schedule set forth above, our non-employee directors received the following total compensation for
2008 for their service on our board of directors:

Fees Earned Option
or Paid in Awards

Non-Employee Director Cash ($)(1) ($)(2) Total ($)

Duane D. Benson $ 23,700 $ � $ 23,700
Allan R. DeBoer 29,700 � 29,700
Michael J. Fogarty 29,650 � 29,650
Timothy R. Geisler 61,600 � 61,600
Karen L. Himle 23,700 6,261 29,961
Malcolm W. McDonald 33,400 3,963 37,363
Mahlon C. Schneider 26,500 � 26,500

(1) We allow directors to defer receipt of their fees until January 30 of the calendar year immediately following the
date in which they cease to be a member of the board. We pay deferred fees over a yearly period of ten years or
less. Deferred fees earn interest at a rate equal to our bank subsidiary�s cost of funds on November 30 of each year

Edgar Filing: ANTARES PHARMA INC - Form 10-Q/A

Table of Contents 54



in which the fees are deferred. A director who is one of our employees receives no separate compensation for
services as a director. At December 31, 2008, Mr. DeBoer had a deferred fee balance of $200,259 and
Mr. Schneider had a deferred fee balance of $126,631.

(2) The amount reported is the compensation expense recognized in our financial statements for 2008 pursuant to
SFAS No. 123(R). In accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), we determine the fair value of options awards at the
date of grant and recognize the expense of the options for financial reporting purposes over the vesting period.
For options awarded in 2005, the most recent year in which we granted stock options, the fair values of option
grants were estimated on the date of grant using a Black Scholes option valuation model based on the following
assumptions: 4.03% risk-free interest rate; 9 year expected life; 8.75% expected volatility; and 2.9% expected
dividends. We granted 15,000 options to each director when they became a member of the board. Options
outstanding at December 31, 2008 totaled 0 for Mr. Benson, 10,500 for Mr. Geisler and 15,000 for each of the
other directors. The exercise prices of the outstanding options range from $11.25 to $30.00. No director received
any option grants in 2008.
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COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

We have not paid any compensation to our executive officers since our formation. We do not anticipate paying any
compensation to these officers until we become actively involved in the operation or acquisition of businesses other
than our banking subsidiary. The following discusses the compensation paid or accrued by our banking subsidiary for
services rendered by our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and our three most highly compensated
other executive officers for 2008. We sometimes refer to the executive officers as the named executive officers.

The compensation committee of our board of directors establishes and administers the compensation and benefits
program for executive officers and directors. The compensation committee has designed our executive compensation
program to achieve the following primary goals:

� to attract and retain a highly qualified and coordinated workforce of executives who have the skills, experience
and work ethic required to effectively achieve our goals and objectives; and

� to align executives� interests with the creation and maintenance of long-term stockholder value.

Two recent developments have impacted our compensation programs and procedures. First, on December 23, 2008,
we issued securities to the United States Treasury under the CPP. Under the CPP, we and our senior executive officers
must comply with certain limitations on executive compensation pay and practices throughout the time the Treasury
holds our securities that it purchased under the CPP. The compensation provisions of the legislation under which the
CPP is authorized were amended significantly effective February 17, 2009, and implementing regulations have not yet
been issued. See �Impact of the Capital Purchase Program on Compensation Matters� on the following pages. Second,
on January 28, 2009, Michael McNeil, our former President and Chief Executive Officer resigned from all positions
with our company and the bank, and Bradley C. Krehbiel was appointed President of the bank. Through that
appointment, Mr. Krehbiel became our principal executive officer. The following discussion and analysis generally
applies to our compensation programs and procedures as they were in effect for 2008, and to the extent permitted by
the limitations under the CPP, as they currently would remain. However, based on the recent developments discussed
above, we anticipate that modifications to our compensation programs and procedures will be required in 2009. The
regulatory environment related to the CPP continues to evolve, and extent of the modifications that we will be
required to make to our compensation programs and procedures remains pending.

The committee seeks to achieve the goals of our executive compensation program by providing for a competitive base
salary, short-term cash incentives and intermediate and long-term equity awards. Base salaries generally represent
one-half to two-thirds of our executives� total annual potential compensation (which consists of base salary, cash bonus
potential and the grant date value of equity compensation awards granted in a particular year). The committee�s
philosophy is that base salaries are a significant retention element of compensation, and that our base salaries should
be competitive with those of similar sized financial institutions that have operating results similar to ours. The
remainder of our executives� annual potential compensation is divided between cash incentives and equity awards.
Cash incentives are a discretionary element of compensation that the committee uses to reward executives for
performance, including contributions to company performance, that is consistent with the creation and maintenance of
intermediate and long-term stockholder value. Equity awards are designed to promote the retention of executives and
to align their interests with the creation and maintenance of intermediate and long-term stockholder value. The
compensation committee seeks to blend the elements of the compensation program so that base salaries provide
competitive compensation for short-term retention purposes, incentive elements of compensation (incentive bonuses
and the appreciation potential of equity awards) provide sufficient incentives to motivate executives to achieve
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business objectives that will lead to the creation and maintenance of intermediate and long-term stockholder value and
time-based elements of compensation (time-based vesting of equity awards) provide sufficient incentives for
long-term executive retention and encourage executives to have a long-term perspective in creating and maintaining
stockholder value.

In designing our compensation programs, we consider, as ancillary matters, the accounting treatment in our financial
statements and the tax impact on us of various potential elements of compensation. We also consider, as
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ancillary matters, the tax impact, including the timing of taxation, on our executives of various potential elements of
compensation. In the past, we have modified the mix of our compensation elements based on changes in financial
accounting treatment (such as changing the nature of equity compensation awards partially in response to changes in
accounting for equity compensation) and included compensation elements with favorable tax treatment for our
employees (such as employer 401(k) contributions), and we may do so again in the future. However, we do not
consider accounting and tax matters as primary factors in managing our compensation program. Our chief financial
officer and his staff, together with outside professionals, assist the compensation committee in evaluating the financial
accounting and tax treatment of existing and potential elements of our executive compensation program.

The compensation committee consists exclusively of independent non-employee directors. The committee has the
authority to retain compensation consultants to assist in the evaluation of executive officer compensation. In 2008, the
committee did not engage an independent compensation consultant.

The committee directs our chief financial officer and his staff to perform an annual survey of executive compensation
at similar sized financial institutions with similar operating results based on public filings to assist it in determining
executive compensation. The survey includes base salaries, bonuses, restricted stock awards, option awards, other
compensation and total compensation, all as reported in public filings. The committee reviews executive
compensation information from financial institutions that are similar to ours as the information helps the committee
members assess whether elements of our executive compensation program are competitive and understand the
elements, mix of elements and range in compensation amounts attributable to various elements of compensation paid
by similar financial institutions. In determining the 2008 compensation amounts, the committee considered publicly
available compensation data for banks and thrifts with assets between $750 million and $1.5 billion with return on
asset ratios of .75%-1.25% and return on equity ratios of 7.5%-12.5%. In 2007, the year for which financial results
were available when we identified comparable companies, we had assets of $1.0 billion, a return on assets ratio of
1.0% and a return on equity ratio of 10.93% based on an average of the three most recent years. In an attempt to focus
the survey on the midrange of the competitive market and reduce wide variances, we eliminated from each executive
officer�s survey the five financial institutions with the highest total compensation amounts and the five financial
institutions with the lowest compensation amounts. The financial institutions included in the annual survey were
Atlantic Southern Financial Group, Inc., Bar Harbor Bankshares, Centrue Financial Corporation, Citizens & Northern
Corporation, Community Capital Corporation, Crescent Banking Company, Eagle Bancorp, Inc., Eastern Virginia
Bankshares, Inc., Enterprise Bancorp, Inc., First National Lincoln Corporation, First Security Group, Inc., German
American Bancorp, Inc., MetroCorp Bancshares, Inc., Northrim BanCorp, Inc., PAB Bankshares, Inc.,
Peapack-Gladstone Financial Corporation, Peoples Financial Corporation, Porter Bancorp, Inc., Pulaski Financial
Corp., Severn Bancorp, Inc., Wilber Corporation and WGNB Corporation. The survey included data from these
companies on base salaries, bonuses, restricted stock awards, option grants and other compensation.

For 2008, the committee established the annual compensation program for the chief executive officer after evaluating
his performance prior to the beginning of the year. The chairman of our compensation committee developed a
preliminary compensation package for the chief executive officer prior to the beginning of 2008. The chairman
reviewed the preliminary compensation package with the other committee members before presenting it to the chief
executive officer. After incorporating input from the committee, the chairman reviewed the proposed compensation
package with the chief executive officer, and they engaged in a dialogue regarding the elements and magnitude of the
plan. This dialogue took place over the period of several weeks. Throughout the dialogue, the chairman consulted with
other members of the committee as he deemed necessary. Once the chairman had considered the input of the chief
executive officer, and made any revisions to the proposed compensation package that he considered appropriate, the
chairman presented the proposed compensation package to the full compensation committee for approval. The chief
executive officer proposed the 2008 annual compensation programs for each of our other executive officers, and the
committee evaluated and approved or modified those compensation programs.
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Our annual financial performance against our budget is one of the factors the compensation committee considers when
evaluating executive compensation. Our budget generally is historically based and is driven extensively by our interest
rate model. Our annual budget is prepared by our chief financial officer and his staff. Versions of the budget are
reviewed with, and adjustments are proposed by, our senior management, including our
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principal executive officer, in an iterative process. Management attempts to develop a budget that is appropriate and
attainable. After our senior management approves the annual budget, it is presented to, and approved by, the full board
of directors.

In acting on the compensation programs for executive officers, the committee considers many factors, including the
results of the annual survey of executive compensation, our overall performance compared to expected results and the
contributions of the executive to achieving our strategic goals. Although we do not have formal stock ownership
guidelines, the committee does consider the value and vesting timetable of outstanding equity awards held by
executive officers in determining the timing and amount of new equity awards. While the committee may from time to
time establish specific objectives for the receipt of incentive compensation, our compensation program is essentially a
discretionary system in which the committee uses annual compensation survey data and draws upon the business
experience, business judgment and general knowledge of its members to evaluate compensation matters
collaboratively and subjectively.

Elements of Compensation

Executive compensation includes the following elements:

Base Salary.  The base salary amount is the fixed portion of each executive�s annual compensation and typically
represents 50%-70% of an executive�s total annual potential compensation. Salary levels are based primarily on the
executive�s responsibilities and experience and the market compensation paid by similar sized financial institutions for
similar positions, as indicated in the annual compensation survey prepared for the committee. Base salaries are
reviewed annually, and adjusted from time to time to realign salaries with market levels after taking into account
individual responsibilities, performance and experience. While we intend for our overall compensation packages,
including the base salary element, to be competitive, our base salaries generally are below the mid-point of the range
of base salaries for comparable positions reflected in the annual compensation survey prepared for the committee.
Lower base salaries allow us to weight compensation more to discretionary elements of compensation so that we can
vary compensation based on performance, including company performance.

Chief Executive Officer 2008 Non-Equity Incentive Plan.  The committee established a non-equity incentive plan as
a short-term incentive for our chief executive officer for 2008. The plan was based on the achievement of annual
financial and non-financial objectives, which were established by the committee, after consultations with our chief
executive officer, at the beginning of 2008. The allocation of incentives between financial and non-financial
objectives for the 2008 plan was split 25% for attainment of budgeted net income (which would have represented an
increase of net income in 2008 of 5.1% from 2007 net income adjusted by approximately $3.6 million for items
considered nonrecurring and expected changes in net interest income) and 75% for attainment of strategic objectives.
Strategic objectives included reducing our required provision for loan losses below the budgeted amount (which
would have represented a decrease of more than 30% from the 2007 provision), increasing deposits other than
certificates of deposit by more than 3.5% from their 2007 levels, meeting or exceeding the budget amount of
non-interest income (which was essentially equivalent to 2007 non-interest income excluding approximately
$1.0 million of non-interest income considered nonrecurring) and meeting performance objectives for specified
market segments and bank branch offices.

Under the 2008 plan, our chief executive officer was eligible to receive a bonus of $50,000 for attaining budgeted net
income. Our chief executive was also eligible to receive a bonus up to $150,000 for attaining certain strategic
objectives. Our chief executive officer received no payments under the non-equity incentive plan for 2008.

Chief Executive Officer Discretionary Annual Bonus.  Our chief executive officer was eligible to receive a
discretionary bonus. In evaluating whether to award our chief executive officer a discretionary bonus, and the amount
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of that bonus, the committee considered payment, if any, under his non-equity incentive plan, trends in our financial
performance over multi-year time horizons, the importance of continuity and stability in the chief executive officer
position to developing and implementing sound long-term strategic plans, and the chief executive officer�s
contributions to non-financial aspects of our business such as enhancing our reputation and maintaining a favorable
corporate culture. Any bonus amount was to be paid in cash in an amount reviewed and approved by the
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committee in a single installment during the first quarter of the year after the bonus was earned. Our chief executive
officer received no discretionary bonus for 2008

Non-Chief Executive Officer Discretionary Annual Bonus.  The committee has the authority to award discretionary
annual bonuses to our non-chief executive officers. These bonuses are intended to compensate executive officers
based on our financial and operating performance, and are determined after considering the individual performance of
the executive officers for the prior year. No discretionary bonuses were awarded to our non-chief executive officers
for 2008.

Any non-chief executive bonus amounts are paid in cash in an amount reviewed and approved by the committee in a
single installment during the first quarter of the year after the bonus is earned. The amount of the executive officer�s
bonus potential is generally based on a percentage of the executive�s base salary. The amount of each executive
officer�s bonus potential is communicated to him or her at the beginning of each year, but no firm bonus criteria are
established. Also, the committee retains the authority to have bonuses paid in excess of the pre-established percentage
of the executive�s base salary. The bonus amounts are fully discretionary, but the committee generally exercises that
discretion based on our financial performance relative to budgeted net income, general market and economic
conditions, as well as an evaluation of the executive�s personal performance.

Restricted Stock Grants.  The issuance of restricted stock is designed to provide an intermediate-term retention
incentive for executives, align executives� interests with the creation and maintenance of long-term stockholder value
and reward executives for managing our performance to increase stockholder value. Restricted stock grants are
intermediate-term retention incentives because they generally vest over a three-year period and require continued
employment by the executive during the vesting period. Restricted stock provides a stronger retention incentive than
stock options, which also vest over time, because executives are assured of realizing value as restricted stock vests
over time, although that value will vary based on the trading price of the stock at the time of vesting. With stock
options, executives only realize value over time if the price of the stock increases from the option exercise price. The
committee�s philosophy is that restricted stock grants also may encourage executives to balance the risks of losses in
stockholder value against the potential for gains in stockholder values when evaluating business decisions. If
executives receive only stock options as equity incentive awards, they may adopt higher-risk business strategies in an
attempt to increase their company�s stock price because the only loss they suffer if the strategies fail and their
company�s stock price declines is the loss of the potential for value from the option. When executives hold restricted
stock, they share in the loss of value realized if the stock price declines. As a result, the executives may adopt
strategies that strike a better balance between the potential for stock price appreciation and the risk that a failed
strategy will lead to a stock price decline. The committee recommended adoption of the HMN Financial, Inc. 2009
Equity Incentive Plan to the board of directors in part to permit the continued use of restricted stock grants as an
element of compensation.

The committee began using restricted stock grants as an element of fulfilling the equity ownership objective of the
overall compensation program in 2004, when the accounting requirements for expensing stock options changed and
the difference in the financial statement impact between granting awards of restricted stock and granting option
awards was reduced. The committee also determined that the long-term vesting requirements of outstanding stock
options adequately fulfilled the long-term incentive portion of the compensation plan and that intermediate-term
incentives were needed to complement the other types of compensation issued to executive officers.

Stock Options.  The committee�s philosophy is that part of the financial rewards and incentives for executive officers
should come from increases in the value of our common stock. The issuance of stock options is designed to reward
executives for favorable long-term performance of our stock. Stock options are a long-term incentive as they generally
vest over a three to ten-year period and are exercisable up to ten years from the grant date. Because they are a
long-term incentive, stock options encourage the long-term employment of executives which is important to ensure
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the continuity of our business operations. Beginning in 2004, the committee began issuing restricted stock grants as an
equity incentive instead of stock options due, in part, to the relatively long remaining vesting and exercise periods of
the then outstanding stock options. No stock options have been issued to executive officers in the past four years. It is
anticipated that, subject to CPP limitations, we will continue to use stock options as a long-term incentive for
executives and that the committee in its discretion will grant new stock options as the remaining vesting and exercise
periods for outstanding options decreases. The committee historically made stock option grants
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in the first quarter of the year, after our fiscal results were released, but prior to our first quarter results being known.
The committee may make option grants at other times based on individual circumstances, but will not time option
grants based on favorable or unfavorable information about our operations or prospects. The committee recommended
adoption of the HMN Financial, Inc. 2009 Equity Incentive Plan to the board of directors in part to permit the
continued use of stock options as an element of compensation.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP).  Our executive officers participate on a nondiscriminatory basis in our
ESOP. All of our employees are eligible to participate in the ESOP after they complete one year of service as defined
by the plan. The ESOP holds shares that secure a loan for the funds that were used to acquire the ESOP shares. Each
year the security interest is released from a fixed number of shares as a fixed amount of the loan is amortized. The
shares that are released from the security interest are allocated to eligible participant accounts based on the percentage
of the participant�s compensation (subject to limits) to the entire compensation of all plan participants. The value of the
ESOP contributions generally has represented between 6%-12% of each executive�s base salary amount. In 2008, the
value of the ESOP contributions decreased significantly due to the decline in our share price. The committee considers
the value of the ESOP contributions when it establishes annual compensation amounts and when it considers the mix
between cash and equity compensation. The committee also considers the value of the ESOP contributions when
evaluating the total compensation of our executives relative to the compensation of other executives at similar
companies.

Other In-Service Compensation.  Executive officers participate on an equal, nondiscriminatory basis with all other
employees in our medical insurance plan, medical reimbursement plan, childcare plan, long-term disability plan and
group life insurance plan. Historically, we have awarded nominal cash bonuses annually to all employees, including
our executives, based upon years of service. In the past, we also provided Mr. Krehbiel and Ms. Kolling with use of a
company car as their jobs require extensive travel, however we have discontinued this practice. The committee
considers all of the benefits granted to executives when determining executive compensation amounts and comparing
compensation amounts to other executives at similar companies.

Post-Service Compensation.  The committee�s philosophy is that post-service compensation contributes to executive
retention. We therefore allow all employees and executives to participate, on a nondiscriminatory basis, in a 401(k)
plan with a 25% match on employee contributions up to 8% of the employee�s salary. Upon retirement from our
company, all employees, including executive officers, are eligible to withdraw their balance from the 401(k) plan and
ESOP in accordance with the plans, and to receive any benefit payments to which they are eligible from our defined
benefit pension plan. If an executive retires after 15 years of service, we will continue to pay the employer portion of
his or her health insurance coverage until he or she reaches the age of 65. The committee considers post-service
compensation when determining executive compensation amounts, but our compensation programs are designed
primarily on in-service compensation.

We also have entered into change-in-control agreements with our executive officers that, subject to CPP requirement,
may provide post-service compensation to executive officers if their employment is terminated following a change in
control of our company. The committee�s philosophy is that change-in-control agreements are appropriate to induce
executives to remain with our company in the event of a proposed or anticipated change in control or through a
change in control to facilitate an orderly transition to new ownership. The change-in-control agreements also assist us
in recruiting and retaining executives by providing executives with appropriate economic security, given the relatively
limited number of alternative employers in our industry and geographic area, against loss of employment following a
change in control.

Recovery of Performance-Based Compensation
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The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires recovery of certain incentive and equity compensation from our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer in the event of restatement of financial results due to misconduct. The audit
committee is responsible for determining if bonus or stock compensation paid to the principal executive officer or
principal financial officer should be recovered in the event of a restatement.
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Impact of the Capital Purchase Program on Compensation Matters

Restrictions on Compensation.  On December 23, 2008, we issued securities to the United States Treasury under the
CPP. Under the CPP, we and our senior executive officers must comply with certain limitations on executive
compensation pay and practices throughout the time the Treasury holds our securities. These include the following
requirements:

� our compensation committee must review within 90 days of the Treasury�s purchase of our securities incentive
compensation arrangements for our named executive officers with our senior risk officers to assess and limit
arrangements which encourage �unnecessary or excessive risks� that could threaten the value of our company;
the compensation committee also must meet annually with the senior risk officer to discuss and review the
relationship between our company�s risk management policies and practices and the named executive officers�
incentive compensation arrangements; and the compensation committee must certify to the foregoing in our
proxy statement;

� any named executive officer bonus or incentive compensation paid must be subject to recovery by the company
if the payments were based on materially inaccurate financial statements or any other materially inaccurate
performance metric;

� we may not make any compensation payment to a named executive officer on account of an involuntary
severance from employment or in the event of our receivership to the extent the aggregate present value of
such payments equals or exceeds three times that person�s annual compensation computed in accordance with
Section 280G(e) of the Internal Revenue Code; and

� we may not claim a deduction in an applicable tax year for federal income tax purposes from remuneration in
excess of $500,000, as calculated in accordance with Section 162(m)(5) of the Internal Revenue Code.

In addition, on February 17, 2009, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, or ARRA, was signed into
law. The ARRA provides that the Secretary of Treasury will require each CPP participant to meet appropriate
standards for executive compensation and corporate governance. Those appropriate standards must include:

� limits on compensation that exclude incentives for senior executive officers of CPP participants to take
�unnecessary or excessive risks� that could threaten the value of the CPP participant;

� a provision for the recovery by CPP participants of any bonus, retention award, or incentive compensation paid
to a senior executive officer and any of the next 20 most highly compensated employees of the CPP participant
based on statements of earnings, revenues, gains or other criteria that are later found to be materially
inaccurate;

� a prohibition on CPP participants making any payment (except payments for services performed or benefits
accrued) to a senior executive officer or any of the five most highly compensated employees of the CPP
participant for departure from the CPP participant for any reason;

� a prohibition against a CPP participant paying or accruing any bonus, retention award, or incentive
compensation, except for long-term restricted stock with a value not greater than one-third of annual
compensation that does not fully vest during the period in which any obligation arising from the financial
assistance provided to the CPP participant remains outstanding, for (at our level of participation in the CPP) the
five most highly compensated employees of the CPP participant; and
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� a prohibition on any compensation plan that would encourage manipulation of the reported earnings of the CPP
participant to enhance the compensation of any of its employees.

Each of the requirements listed above will impact the design of our compensation programs and arrangements for our
executive officers so long as the Treasury holds our securities and potentially beyond that period. However, the
Treasury has not issued implementing regulations governing these new required standards, which vary in certain
material respects from previously existing requirements. The extent and nature of the impact of these new
requirements on our compensation programs and arrangements remains under consideration as the regulatory
environment related to the CPP continues to evolve. Our compensation programs and procedures for 2009 will be
determined following publication of additional regulatory guidance.
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Recovery of Incentive Compensation.  Pursuant to existing Treasury regulations, all bonuses and other incentive
compensation arrangements with our senior executive officers have been amended to provide that during the time the
Treasury holds a position in our shares, we may recover any payments that were based on materially inaccurate
financial statements or any other materially inaccurate performance metrics used to award bonuses or incentive
compensation. The right to recover these payments is not dependant upon the occurrence of a restatement of our
financial results or of any misconduct.

Restriction on Payment of Golden Parachutes.  Also pursuant to existing Treasury regulations, arrangements with
our senior executive officers have been amended to prohibit, while the Treasury maintains its investment in our
securities, any compensation payment to a named executive officer on account of an involuntary severance from
employment or in the event of our receivership to the extent that the aggregate present value of such payments equals
or exceeds three times that person�s annual compensation computed in accordance with Section 280G(e) of the Internal
Revenue Code.

Safeguards Against Unnecessary or Excessive Risk.  As noted above, under requirements related to the CPP, the
compensation committee must review senior executive officer incentive compensation with our senior risk officer to
assess whether those arrangements encourage �unnecessary or excessive risks� to our company. The risk assessment
must be done no later than 90 days after the Treasury�s purchase of our shares. Additionally, the compensation
committee also must meet annually with the senior risk officer to discuss and review the relationship between our
company�s risk management policies and practices and the named executive officers� incentive compensation
arrangements. The term �senior executive officer� is defined as the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, and
the three other most highly compensated executive officers. These senior executive officers are our named executive
officers, as defined above.

Our compensation committee has met with our senior risk officer to undertake the foregoing discussions and reviews
relating to incentive compensation for our named executive officers. Based on, among other factors, its assessment of
the principal risks to which our company is subject, its evaluation of the existing compensation arrangements for our
named executive officers, the relatively significant portion of total compensation represented by base salary as
opposed to variable forms of compensation, the discretion to award incentive compensation exercisable by the
company, the customary use of non-financial objectives in determining a significant portion of any bonus
compensation, the use of restricted stock as a significant component of equity incentive compensation and the sole
component in recent years, the required vesting periods included in equity awards and the clawback requirements to
which incentive compensation is now subject, the compensation committee concluded that our incentive
compensation for our named executive officers does not encourage unnecessary or excessive risk that would threaten
the value of our company.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The compensation committee certifies that it has reviewed with senior risk officers the named executive officer
incentive compensation arrangements and has made reasonable efforts to ensure that such arrangements do not
encourage named executive officers to take unnecessary and excessive risks that threaten the value of our company;
and met to discuss and review the relationship between our risk management policies and practices and the incentive
compensation arrangements for our named executive officers.

The compensation committee has discussed and reviewed the compensation discussion and analysis with
management. Based upon this review and discussion, the compensation committee recommended to the board of
directors that the compensation discussion and analysis be included in this proxy statement.
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Members of the Compensation Committee

Duane D. Benson
Allan R. DeBoer
Michael J. Fogarty
Karen L. Himle
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2008 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

Non-Equity Stock Option
All

Other
Salary Bonus Incentive Awards AwardsCompensation

Name and Principal Position Year ($) ($)(3) Plan($) ($)(4) ($)(4) ($)(5) Total ($)

Michael McNeil(1) 2008 338,000 150 0 105,829 4,592 22,733 471,304
President and Chief 2007 325,000 45,150 120,000 88,433 5,297 34,089 617,969
Executive Officer 2006 310,000 50,150 0 51,452 5,574 36,141 453,317
Jon J. Eberle 2008 142,000 150 0 44,310 1,713 7,713 195,886
Senior Vice President, 2007 136,500 33,593 0 35,452 1,872 17,489 224,906
Chief Financial Officer 2006 130,000 24,525 0 18,473 2,960 20,893 196,851
and Treasurer
Dwain C. Jorgensen 2008 112,300 150 0 35,548 2,170 6,505 156,673
Senior Vice President, 2007 109,000 26,855 0 29,997 2,314 14,194 182,360
Technology, Facilities and 2006 105,825 19,992 0 16,389 3,298 17,840 163,344
Compliance Services
Susan K. Kolling 2008 119,300 150 0 37,441 1,599 12,469 170,959
Senior Vice President, 2007 114,738 28,261 0 31,398 1,770 19,391 195,558
Business Development 2006 110,325 20,863 0 16,789 2,929 18,838 169,717
Bradley C. Krehbiel(2) 2008 160,700 150 0 50,502 2,059 15,291 228,702
Executive Vice President, 2007 154,500 38,003 0 41,693 2,260 24,464 260,920
Business Banking 2006 150,000 20,150 0 22,415 3,629 28,397 224,591

(1) Mr. McNeil resigned from all positions with our company on January 28, 2009.

(2) Mr. Krehbiel was appointed President of our banking subsidiary on January 28, 2009. He served as Executive
Vice President, Business Banking of our banking subsidiary for the periods presented.

(3) We generally pay bonuses for a fiscal year in the first quarter of the following fiscal year. The bonus amounts
include a customary $150 annual holiday bonus.

(4) The amount reported is the compensation expense recognized in our financial statements pursuant to
SFAS No. 123(R). In accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), we determine the fair value of options awards or
restricted stock awards at the date of grant and recognize the expense for financial reporting purposes over the
vesting period. For options awarded in 2005, the most recent year in which we granted stock options, the fair
values of option grants were estimated on the date of grant using a Black Scholes option valuation model based
on the following assumptions: 4.03% risk-free interest rate; 9 year expected life; 8.75% expected volatility; and
2.9% expected dividends. For restricted stock awards we use the average grant date stock price.

(5) All other compensation consists of the following:
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Dividends
Received

Employer
401(k)

Value of
Common

Employer
Paid Life on Vested

Perquisites
and

Contribution
Stock

Allocated to
Insurance
Premiums

Restricted
Stock

Other
Personal

Name ($) ESOP ($) ($) ($)
Benefits
($)(a) Total ($)

Michael McNeil
2008 4,600 2,755 664 5,069 9,645 22,733
2007 4,500 18,756 619 2,293 7,921 34,089
2006 4,500 23,745 562 702 6,632 36,141
Jon J. Eberle
2008 3,543 2,122 74 1,974 0 7,713
2007 3,262 13,262 104 861 0 17,489
2006 2,983 17,492 173 245 0 20,893
Dwain C. Jorgensen
2008 2,779 1,664 335 1,727 0 6,505
2007 2,581 10,525 304 784 0 14,194
2006 3,269 14,210 121 240 0 17,840
Susan K. Kolling
2008 2,975 1,782 241 1,803 5,668 12,469
2007 2,738 11,113 335 819 4,386 19,391
2006 2,752 14,814 130 250 892 18,838
Bradley C. Krehbiel
2008 3,875 2,396 134 2,369 6,517 15,291
2007 3,629 14,375 189 1,061 5,210 24,464
2006 2,517 20,178 216 316 5,170 28,397

(a) Perquisites and other personal benefits include cash payments for country club dues and the use of company cars.

Employment Agreement

We entered into an employment agreement with Mr. McNeil on May 27, 2008. The agreement provided for an initial
base salary of $338,000 but was subject to a potential annual upward adjustment based on a review of Mr. McNeil�s
performance by the compensation committee of our board. Mr. McNeil�s annual base salary prior to his resignation
was $338,000. The agreement had an initial term of three years. On April 30 of each year, the term was to
automatically extend for a period of twelve months in addition to the then-remaining term of employment, unless any
party to the agreement gives contrary written notice or under certain other circumstances. At the time of Mr. McNeil�s
resignation, the term of the agreement extended through December 31, 2010. Under the circumstances of his
resignation, but subject to any current or future applicable limitations under the CPP, Mr. McNeil will continue to
receive his salary and a reimbursement for the cost of premiums to maintain the same level of health insurance
coverage as he was receiving before the date of termination through the remaining term of the agreement.

Change-In-Control Agreements
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Our banking subsidiary entered into a change-in-control agreement with Mr. McNeil as of May 27, 2008, which
remained effective until his resignation. The circumstances of Mr. McNeil�s resignation did not entitle him to any
payment under his change-in-control agreement. Each of Messrs. Eberle, Krehbiel and Jorgensen and Ms. Kolling
entered into a change-in-control agreement with our banking subsidiary as of May 27, 2008. These agreements expire
on May 30, 2010, but they provide for an automatic extension for one year and from year to year thereafter unless
either applicable party gives contrary written notice 180 days prior to the expiration date each year. The current term
of the agreements extends through May 30, 2010. These agreements are designed to assist us in maintaining a stable
and competent management team. The agreements provide for a cash payment equal to a percentage of the employee�s
prior year base salary and bonus prior to termination in the event that their employment is terminated in connection
with a change of control. A change of control has occurred under the
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agreements if any person other than the executive, us, or one of our benefit plans acquires or becomes beneficial
owner of 35% or more of our outstanding stock entitled to vote in a general election of directors; a majority of the
members of our board are replaced as a result of an actual or threatened election contest, a reorganization, merger or
consolidation of us is consummated that changes our ownership by 35% or more; our stockholders approve a complete
liquidation or dissolution of us or disposition of substantially all of our assets. The employee will also be eligible for
the cash payment if they voluntarily terminate employment within one year after a change in control has occurred if
their duties, responsibilities, base salary, or benefits are reduced or if their principal place of employment is relocated
more than 35 miles from its current location. Messrs. Eberle, Jorgensen and Krehbiel and Ms. Kolling are entitled to
receive a cash payment equal to 200% of the sum of their respective base salary and actual bonus for the taxable year
prior to the change of control. These agreements also provide that the employees may participate in the health,
disability and life insurance plans and programs that the employees were entitled to immediately prior to termination
for one year after termination. The amounts payable pursuant to these agreements will be reduced by the amount of
any severance pay that the employees receive from the bank, its subsidiaries or its successors. Based on their prior
year base salary and bonus amounts, if their employment had been terminated as of December 31, 2008 under
circumstances giving rise to the salary payment described above, Mr. Eberle would have been entitled to receive
approximately $340,186, Mr. Jorgensen would have been entitled to receive approximately $271,710, Mr. Krehbiel
would have been entitled to receive approximately $385,006 and Ms. Kolling would have been entitled to receive
approximately $285,998. The agreements provide that if the cash payments under the agreements together with any
other compensation payments triggered by the change in control would constitute a �parachute payment� under
Section 280G of the internal revenue code, the cash payments under the agreements would be reduced to the largest
amount as would result in no portion of the payment being subject to an excise tax under the code. The continued
effectiveness of the change-in-control agreements is subject to any current or future applicable limitations under the
CPP.

In addition to the change in control agreements, our restricted stock agreements provide that if there is a merger,
dissolution, liquidation of us or sale of substantially all of our assets, the restrictions on the restricted shares shall
lapse. Based on the closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2008, the last trading day before year end,
and the number of shares of stock subject to restrictions held by them, shares with a value of approximately $14,989
held by Mr. Eberle, shares with a value of approximately $11,921 held by Mr. Jorgensen, shares with a value of
approximately $17,001 held by Mr. Krehbiel and shares with a value of approximately $12,611 held by Ms. Kolling,
would have been freed from restrictions if the restrictions on the shares would have lapsed on December 31, 2008.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2008

Restricted Stock
Awards: Number

of
Fair Market

Value

Shares of Stock or
of Restricted

Stock
Name Grant Date Units (#) Awards ($)(1)

Michael McNeil January 25, 2008 5,377 126,790
Jon J. Eberle January 25, 2008 2,259 53,267
Dwain C. Jorgensen January 25, 2008 1,787 42,137
Susan K. Kolling January 25, 2008 1,898 44,755
Bradley C. Krehbiel January 25, 2008 2,557 60,294

(1) Based on a market value of $23.58 on January 25, 2008.
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Outstanding Equity Awards

The following tables summarize the outstanding option grants and stock awards at December 31, 2008 of the named
executive officers and the value of the restricted stock that vested in 2008.

Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 2008

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number

of
Number

of
Market
Value

Securities Number of
Shares
or of Shares or

Underlying Securities Units of Units of

Unexercised Underlying Option Option
Stock
That Stock That

Options
(#) Options (#) Exercise Expiration

Have
Not Have Not

Name Exercisable Unexercisable(1) Price ($) Date
Vested
(#)(2)

Vested
($)(3)

Michael McNeil 50,000 0 11.50 04/28/2009 8,536 35,680
1,520 24,796 16.13 04/28/2009
5,000 0 27.64 04/28/2009

Jon J. Eberle 0 9,853 16.13 04/15/2012 3,586 14,989
3,640 0 27.66 03/02/2014

Dwain C. Jorgensen 0 12,500 16.13 04/15/2012 2,852 11,921
3,580 0 27.66 03/02/2014

Susan K. Kolling 0 9,189 16.13 04/15/2012 3,017 12,611
3,780 0 27.66 03/02/2014

Bradley C. Krehbiel 0 11,842 16.13 04/15/2012 4,067 17,001
4,540 0 27.66 03/02/2014

(1) Mr. McNeil received a grant of options on February 13, 2004, of which 1,250 vested on February 13, 2008.
Mr. McNeil also received a grant of options on April 16, 2002, of which 1,520 options vested on April 16, 2008,
and 6,199 options will vest on the anniversary date in each of 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012. Mr. Eberle received a
grant of options on April 16, 2002, of which 3,654 options will vest on April 16, 2011, and 6,199 options will
vest on January 1, 2012. Mr. Jorgensen received a grant of options on April 16, 2002, of which 102 options will
vest on April 16, 2010, and 6,199 options will vest on each of April 16, 2011 and January 1, 2012. Ms. Kolling
received a grant of options on April 16, 2002, of which 2,990 options will vest on April 16, 2011, and 6,199
options will vest on January 1, 2012. Mr. Krehbiel received a grant of options on April 16, 2002, of which 5,643
options will vest on April 16, 2011 and 6,199 options will vest on January 1, 2012.

(2) All of Mr. McNeil�s unvested stock awards were forfeited on January 28, 2009 upon his resignation. Of
Mr. Eberle�s unvested stock awards, 361 shares vested January 24, 2009, 483 shares vested on January 25, 2009
and 483 shares will vest on January 25, 2010 and 753 shares vested on January 25, 2009 and 753 shares will vest
on each January 25, 2010 and 2011. Of Mr. Jorgensen�s unvested stock awards, 294 shares vested on January 24,
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2009, 385 shares vested on January 25, 2009 and 385 shares will vest on January 25, 2010, and 595 shares vested
on January 25, 2009 and 596 shares will vest on each January 25, 2010 and 2011. Of Ms. Kolling�s unvested stock
awards, 307 shares vested on January 24, 2009, and 385 shares vested on January 25, 2009 and 386 shares will
vest on January 25, 2010, and 632 shares vested on January 25, 2009 and 633 shares will vest on each
January 25, 2010 and 2011. Of Mr. Krehbiel�s unvested stock awards, 417 shares vested on January 24, 2009,
546 shares vested on January 25, 2009, and 547 shares will vest on January 25, 2010, and 753 shares vested on
January 25, 2009, 852 shares will vest on January 25, 2010, and 853 shares will vest on January 25, 2011.

(3) Represents market value of underlying securities at year end of $4.18, which is the closing price of the common
stock on the last trading day of 2008.
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2008 Restricted Stock Vesting

Stock Awards
Number of
Shares Value Realized on

Name
Acquired on
Vesting (#) Vesting ($)(1)

Michael McNeil 2,774 65,411
Jon J. Eberle 1,111 26,692
Dwain C. Jorgensen 941 22,592
Susan K. Kolling 984 23,622
Bradley C. Krehbiel 1,307 31,390

(1) Based on market value of $24.95 on January 24, 2008 and $23.58 on January 25 and 26, 2008.

Our employees are included in the Financial Institutions Retirement Fund (FIRF), a multi-employer comprehensive
pension plan. This non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan covers all employees who have met minimum
service requirements. Employees become 100% vested in the pension plan after five years of eligible service. Our
policy is to fund the minimum amounts required by the plan, and in 2008, we made a contribution of $94,165 to the
plan. On September 1, 2002, benefits for all of our existing participants under the plan were frozen, and as a result, no
additional benefits have been earned and no new employees have been enrolled in the plan after that date. At age 65,
Mr. McNeil will be entitled to annual payments of $5,667, Mr. Eberle will be entitled to annual payments of $4,141,
Mr. Jorgensen will be entitled to annual payments of $28,247, Mr. Krehbiel will be entitled to annual payments of
$2,567 and Ms. Kolling will be entitled to annual payments of $23,779. The annual benefit amount is calculated based
on the employees� base salary for the five years prior to the plan being frozen.

2008 Pension Benefits

Number of Years Present Value of
Payments
During

Credited Service
Accumulated

Benefit
Last Fiscal

Year

Name
Plan
Name (#) ($) ($)

Michael McNeil FIRF 3 years, 5 months 46,696 0
Jon J. Eberle FIRF 6 years, 11 months 11,388 0
Dwain C. Jorgensen FIRF 27 years, 1 month 221,456 0
Susan K. Kolling FIRF 28 years, 9 months 164,788 0
Bradley C. Krehbiel FIRF 3 years, 2 months 10,781 0
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SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors and executive officers to file initial reports of ownership and
reports of changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Directors and executive officers are
required by Securities and Exchange Commission regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they
file. Based solely on a review of the copies of the forms furnished to us and written representations from our directors
and executive officers, all Section 16(a) filing requirements were met for 2008.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We are furnishing our annual report, including financial statements, for the year ended December 31, 2008 to each
stockholder with this proxy statement. Stockholders who wish to obtain an additional copy of our annual report,
or a copy of our Current Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, for the
year ended December 31, 2008 may do so without charge by writing to Chief Financial Officer, 1016 Civic
Center Drive N.W., Rochester, Minnesota 55901-6057. The annual report is also available online at
www.hmnf.com or www.proxydocs.com/hmnf.

HMN FINANCIAL, INC.
By Order of the Board of Directors

Cindy K. Hamlin
Secretary

Dated: March 20, 2009
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EXHIBIT A

HMN FINANCIAL, INC.
2009 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

1. Purpose.  The purpose of the HMN Financial, Inc. 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the �Plan�) is to promote the interests
of the Company and its stockholders by providing key personnel of, and advisors to, the Company and its Affiliates
with an opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the Company. The opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest
in the Company will aid in attracting, motivating and retaining key personnel and advisors, including Non-Employee
directors, and will align their interests with those of the Company�s stockholders.

2. Definitions.  The capitalized terms used in the Plan have the meanings set forth below.

(a) �Affiliate� means a corporation or other entity controlled by, controlling or under common control with the
Company.

(b) �Agreement� means any written or electronic agreement, instrument or document evidencing the grant of an
Award in a form approved by the Committee, including all amendments thereto.

(c) �Award� means a grant made under the Plan in the form of Options, Stock Appreciation Rights, Restricted Stock,
Restricted Stock Units, Performance Units or Other Stock-Based Award.

(d) �Bank� means Home Federal Savings Bank, a federally chartered savings bank and a wholly owned subsidiary of
Company.

(e) �Board� means the Board of Directors of the Company.

(f) �Cause� means the Participant�s (i) incompetence or failure or refusal to perform satisfactorily any duties
reasonably required of the Participant by the Company; (ii) violation of any law, rule or regulation (other than traffic
violations, misdemeanors or similar offenses) or cease-and-desist order, court order, judgment, regulatory directive or
agreement; (iii) commission or omission of, or engaging in, any act or practice that constitutes a material breach of the
Participant�s fiduciary duty to the Company, involves personal dishonesty on the part of the Participant or
demonstrates a willful or continuing disregard for the best interests of Company; (iv) engaging in dishonorable or
disruptive behavior, practices or acts which would be reasonably expected to harm or bring disrepute to Company, its
business or any of its customers, employees or vendors; (v) any failure of the Participant to materially conform to the
Company�s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics; or (vi) the Participant�s material breach of any confidentiality,
non-disclosure, non-solicitation, non-competition, invention assignment or similar agreement with the Company or
any Affiliate.

(g) �Change in Control� means one of the following:

(1) Any �person� (as defined in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act) acquires or becomes a �beneficial owner�
(as defined in Rule 13d-3 or any successor rule under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the
Company or the Bank representing 35% or more of the combined voting power of the then outstanding securities
entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (�Voting Securities�), provided, however, that the following shall
not constitute a Change in Control:

(A) any acquisition of beneficial ownership by the Company, the Bank or a subsidiary of the Company or the Bank;
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(B) any acquisition or beneficial ownership by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by
the Company, the Bank or one or more of their subsidiaries;

(C) any acquisition or beneficial ownership by any corporation (including without limitation an acquisition in a
transaction of the nature described in part (3) of this definition) with respect to which, immediately following such
acquisition, more than 65%, respectively, of (x) the combined voting power of the Company�s or the Bank�s then
outstanding Voting Securities and (y) the Company�s or the Bank�s then outstanding Common Stock is then
beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by all or substantially all of the persons who beneficially owned Voting
Securities and Common Stock, respectively, of the
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Company or the Bank immediately prior to such acquisition in substantially the same proportions as their ownership
of such Voting Securities and Common Stock, as the case may be, immediately prior to such acquisition;

(D) any acquisition of Voting Securities or Common Stock directly from the Company or the Bank; or

(E) any acquisition of beneficial ownership by the Participant or a group, acting in concert, that includes the
Executive;

(2) Continuing Directors shall not constitute a majority of the members of the Board. For purposes of this Plan,
�Continuing Directors� means: (A) individuals who, on the effective date of this Plan, are directors of the Company,
(B) individuals elected as directors of the Company subsequent to the effective date of this Plan for whose election
proxies shall have been solicited by the Board or (C) any individual elected or appointed by the Board to fill vacancies
on the Board caused by death or resignation (but not by removal) or to fill newly-created directorships, provided that a
�Continuing Director� shall not include an individual whose initial assumption of office occurs as a result of an actual or
threatened election contest with respect to the threatened election or removal of directors (or other actual or threatened
solicitation of proxies or consents) by or on behalf of any person other than the Board; or

(3) Consummation of a reorganization, merger or consolidation of the Company or the Bank or a statutory exchange
of outstanding Voting Securities of the Company or the Bank, unless immediately following such reorganization,
merger, consolidation or exchange, all or substantially all of the persons who were the beneficial owners, respectively,
of Voting Securities and Common Stock immediately prior to such reorganization, merger, consolidation or exchange
beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 65% of, respectively, (x) the combined voting power of the then
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors and (y) the then outstanding shares
of common stock of the corporation resulting from such reorganization, merger, consolidation or exchange in
substantially the same proportions as their ownership, immediately prior to such reorganization, merger, consolidation
or exchange, of the Voting Securities and Common Stock, as the case may be; provided, however, that such a
transaction shall not be deemed to be a Change in Control with respect to a Participant if a majority of the then
combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities (or voting equity interests) of the surviving
corporation or of any corporation (or other entity) acquiring all or substantially all of the assets of the Company or the
Bank shall be beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, immediately after a reorganization, merger, consolidation,
exchange or disposition of assets referred to above, by the Participant or by a group, acting in concert, that includes
the Participant.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, for purposes of Awards hereunder that are subject to the provisions of Code
Section 409A, no Change in Control shall be deemed to have occurred upon an event described in clauses (1) through
(3) above that would have the effect of changing the time or form of payment of such Award unless such event would
also constitute a change in the ownership or effective control of, or a change in the ownership of a substantial portion
of the assets of, the Company for purposes of Code Section 409A.

(h) �Code� means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and in effect from time to time, and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

(i) �Committee� means two or more Non-Employee Directors designated by the Board to administer the Plan under
Section 3 hereof, each member of which shall be (i) an independent director within the meaning of the rules and
regulations of The NASDAQ Stock Market, (ii) a non-employee director within the meaning of Exchange Act
Rule 16b-3, and (iii) an �outside director� for purposes of Code Section 162(m).

(j) �Common Stock� means the common stock, par value $.01, of the Company.
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(k) �Company� means HMN Financial, Inc., a Delaware corporation, or any successor thereto.

(l) �Corporate Transaction� means (i) dissolution or liquidation of the Company, (ii) a sale of substantially all of the
assets of the Company, or (iii) a merger or consolidation of the Company with or into any other corporation,
regardless of whether the Company is the surviving corporation.
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(m) �Disability� means, unless otherwise defined in an Agreement, any medically determinable physical or mental
impairment that causes the Participant to be unable to carry out his job responsibilities for a continuous period of more
than six months, in the sole determination of the Committee.

(n) �Employee� means an employee (including an officer or director who is also an employee) of the Company or an
Affiliate.

(o) �Exchange Act� means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended and in effect from time to time.

(p) �Fair Market Value� of a Share means the closing sale price of a Share on the NASDAQ Global Market (or such
other national securities exchange as may at the time be the principal market for the Shares) on the date of
determination (or if no sale occurred on that day, on the next preceding day on which a sale of Shares occurred). If the
Shares are not then listed and traded upon a national securities exchange but are regularly quoted on an automated
quotation system or by a recognized securities dealer, Fair Market Value of a Share shall be the closing sale price (or
the average of the high bid and low asked prices if selling prices are not reported) on such system or by such dealer on
the date of determination (or if no such prices were reported on that day, on the last day such prices were reported). In
the absence of an established market for the Shares as described above, Fair Market Value of a Share will be what the
Committee determines in good faith and in a manner consistent with Code Section 409A to be 100% of the fair market
value of a Share on that date.

(q) �Full Value Award� means an Award other than an Option or Stock Appreciation Right.

(r) �Grant Date� means the date on which the Committee approves the grant of an Award under the Plan, or such
later date as may be specified by the Committee on the date the Committee approves the Award.

(s) �Incentive Stock Option� or �ISO� means any Option designated as such and granted in accordance with the
requirements of Code Section 422.

(t) �Non-Employee Director� means a member of the Board who is not an Employee.

(u) �Non-Statutory Stock Option� means an Option other than an Incentive Stock Option.

(v) �Option� means a right granted under the Plan to purchase a specified number of Shares at a specified price.

(w) �Other Stock-Based Award� means an Award described in Section 12 of this Plan.

(x) �Parent� means a �parent corporation,� as defined in Code Section 424(e), of the Company.

(y) �Participant� means a person to whom an Award is or has been made in accordance with the Plan.

(z) �Performance-Based Compensation� means an Award to a person who is, or is determined by the Committee to
likely become, a �covered employee� (as defined in Code Section 162(m)(3)) and that is intended to constitute
�performance-based compensation� within the meaning of Code Section 162(m)(4)(C).

(aa) �Performance Period� means the period of time, as specified in an Agreement, during which Performance
Measures must be achieved.

(bb) �Performance Measures� means any measures of performance established by the Committee that must be
satisfied as a condition precedent to the vesting of an Award. For any Award intended to constitute
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Performance-Based Compensation, the Performance Measures shall consist of one or a combination of two or more of
the following performance criteria: interest income; net interest income; income before income tax expense; net
income; net income available to common stockholders; earnings per common share (basic or diluted); profitability as
measured by return ratios (including, but not limited to, return on average assets, return on average equity) or by the
degree to which any of the foregoing earnings measures exceed a percentage of interest income; cash flow; market
share; net interest margin; stock price; total stockholder equity; asset quality; non-performing assets; interest income
growth; operating income; cash flow per share; improvement in, or attainment of, non-interest expense levels or cost
savings. Any Performance Measure utilized may be expressed in absolute amounts, on a per share basis, as a growth
rate or change from preceding periods, or as a comparison to the performance of specified
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companies or other external measures, and may relate to one or any combination of corporate, group, unit, division,
Affiliate or individual performance.

(cc) �Performance Unit� means the right to receive a unit valued by reference to a designated number of Shares or a
designated amount of cash upon the achievement of specified levels of one or more Performance Measures as
provided in this Plan and the applicable Agreement.

(dd) �Prior Plan� means the HMN Financial, Inc. 2001 Omnibus Stock Plan.

(ee) �Restricted Stock� means Shares issued to a Participant that are subject to such restrictions on transfer, forfeiture
conditions and other restrictions or limitations as may be set forth in this Plan and the applicable Agreement.

(ff) �Restricted Stock Unit� means a right to receive, in cash and/or Shares as determined by the Committee, the Fair
Market Value of a Share, subject to such restrictions on transfer, forfeiture conditions and other restrictions or
limitations as may be set forth in this Plan and the applicable Agreement.

(gg) �Securities Act� means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended and in effect from time to time.

(hh) �Service� means the provision of services by a Participant to the Company or any Affiliate in any Service
Provider capacity. A Service Provider�s Service shall be deemed to have terminated either upon an actual cessation of
providing services, or upon the entity for which the Service Provider provides services ceasing to be an Affiliate.
Except as otherwise provided in any Agreement, Service shall not be deemed terminated in the case of (i) any
approved leave of absence; (ii) transfers among the Company and any Affiliates in any Service Provider capacity; or
(iii) any change in status so long as the individual remains in the service of the Company or any Affiliate in any
Service Provider capacity.

(ii) �Service Provider� means an Employee, a Non-Employee Director, or any consultant or advisor who is a natural
person and who provides services to the Company or any Affiliate.

(jj) �Share� means a share of Common Stock.

(kk) �Stock Appreciation Right� or �SAR� means the right to receive, in cash and/or Shares as determined by the
Committee, an amount equal to the appreciation in value of a specified number of Shares between the Grant Date of
the SAR and its exercise date.

(ll) �Subsidiary� means a �subsidiary corporation,� as defined in Code Section 424(f), of the Company.

(mm) �Substitute Award� means an Award granted upon the assumption of, or in substitution or exchange for,
outstanding awards granted by a company or other entity acquired by the Company or any affiliate or with which the
company or any Affiliate combines.

(nn) �Successor� means the guardian or legal representative of an incompetent Participant, or if the Participant is
deceased, means the estate of the Participant or the person or persons who may, be bequest or inheritance, or pursuant
to the terms of an Award, acquire the right to exercise an Option or Stock Appreciate Right or to receive cash and/or
Shares issuable in satisfaction of an Award in the event of a Participant�s death.

(oo) �Transferee� means any �family member� (as defined by Rule 701(c)(3) under the Securities Act) of the
Participant.
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3. Administration of the Plan.

(a) Administration.  The authority to control and manage the operations and administration of the Plan shall be vested
in the Committee in accordance with this Section 3.

(b) Scope of Authority.  Subject to the terms of the Plan, the Committee shall have the exclusive authority, in its
discretion, to take such actions as it deems necessary or advisable to administer the Plan, including:

(1) determining the Service Providers to whom Awards will be granted, the timing of each such Award, the types of
Awards and the number of Shares covered by each Award, the terms, conditions, performance criteria, restrictions and
other provisions of Awards, and the manner in which Awards are paid or settled;
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(2) cancelling or suspending an Award, accelerating the vesting or extending the exercise period of an Award, or
otherwise amending the terms and conditions of any outstanding Award, subject to the requirements of Sections 16(c)
and (d); and

(3) establishing, amending or rescinding rules to administer the Plan, interpreting the Plan and any Award or
Agreement made under the Plan, and making all other determinations necessary or desirable for the administration of
the Plan.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board shall perform the duties and have the responsibilities of the Committee with
respect to Awards made to Non-Employee Directors.

(c) Acts of the Committee; Delegation.  A majority of the members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum for any
meeting of the Committee, and any act of a majority of the members present at any meeting at which a quorum is
present or any act unanimously approved in writing by all members of the Committee shall be the act of the
Committee. To the extent not inconsistent with applicable law or stock exchange rules, the Committee may delegate
all or any portion of its authority under the Plan to determine and administer Awards to Participants who are not
subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act to one or more persons who are either Non-Employee Directors or
executive officers of the Company.

(d) Finality of Decisions.  The Committee�s interpretation of the Plan and of any Award or Agreement made under the
Plan and all related decisions or resolutions of the Board or Committee shall be final and binding on all parties with an
interest therein.

(e) Indemnification.  Each person who is or has been a member of the Committee or of the Board, and any other
person to whom the Committee delegates authority under the Plan, shall be indemnified and held harmless by the
Company, to the extent permitted by law, against and from (i) any loss, cost, liability or expense that may be imposed
upon or reasonably incurred by such person in connection with or resulting from any claim, action, suit or proceeding
to which such person may be a party or in which such person may be involved by reason of any action taken or failure
to act, made in good faith, under the Plan and (ii) any and all amounts paid by such person in settlement thereof, with
the Company�s approval, or paid by such person in satisfaction of any judgment in any such action, suit or proceeding
against such person, provided such person shall give the Company an opportunity, at the Company�s expense, to
handle and defend the same before such person undertakes to handle and defend it on such person�s own behalf. The
foregoing right of indemnification shall not be exclusive of any other rights of indemnification to which such person
or persons may be entitled under the Company�s Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws, as a matter of law, or
otherwise, or any power that the Company may have to indemnify them or hold them harmless.

4. Shares Available Under the Plan.

(a) Maximum Shares Available.  Subject to Sections 4(b) and (c), and to adjustment as provided in Section 17, a total
of 350,000 Shares shall be authorized for grant under the Plan. All Shares authorized for grant under this Plan may be
granted as Incentive Stock Options. In determining the number of Shares to be counted against this limit in connection
with any Award, the following rules shall apply:

(1) Each Share that is subject to an Award of Options or Stock Appreciation Rights shall be counted against the
Shares available for distribution under this Plan as one Share.

(2) Each Share (or security that is convertibly into, or equivalent to, a Share) that is subject to any Award other than
Options or Stock Appreciation Rights shall be counted against the Shares available for distribution under this Plan as
one and two tenths (1.2) Shares.
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(3) Where the number of Shares subject to the Award is variable on the Grant Date, the number of Shares to be
counted against the limit prior to the settlement of the Award shall be the maximum number of Shares that could be
received under that particular Award.

(4) Where two or more types of Awards are granted to a Participant in tandem with each other, such that the exercise
of one type of Award with respect to a number of Shares cancels at least an equal number of Shares
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of the other, the number of Shares to be counted against the limit prior to the settlement of the Award shall be the
largest number of Shares that would be counted against the limit under either of the Awards.

(5) With respect to the grant of Performance Units denominated in dollars, the number of Shares counted against the
Shares available for distribution under this Plan shall be equal to the result of dividing (i) the dollar amount for which
the Performance Unit is denominated by (ii) the Fair Market Value of one Share on the date the Performance Unit is
granted.

(b) Effect of Forfeitures and Other Actions.  To the extent that any Award is forfeited or terminates without vesting, or
any Option or Stock Appreciation Right terminates, expires or lapses without being exercised, the Shares subject to
such Award not delivered as a result thereof shall again be available for Awards under the Plan. Shares tendered or
withheld to pay the exercise price of an Option or to pay tax withholding will count against the limitations set forth in
Section 4(a) and will not be added back to the Shares available under the Plan. When a Stock Appreciation Right that
may be settled for shares is exercised, the number of Shares subject to the Agreement shall be counted against the
number of Shares available for issuance under the Plan as one Share for every Share subject thereto, regardless of the
number of Shares used to settle the Stock Appreciation Right upon exercise.

(c) Forfeitures Under 2001 Plan.  To the extent that any stock option or restricted stock award is forfeited or
terminates without vesting, or any stock option terminates, expires or lapses without being exercised, under the 2001
Plan, the Shares subject to such stock option or restricted stock award not delivered as a result thereof shall be
available for Awards under the Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Shares tendered or withheld to pay the exercise
price of a stock option or to pay tax withholding on an award under the 2001 Plan will not be added back to the Shares
available under the Plan

(d) Source of Shares.  Shares issued under the Plan may come from authorized and unissued shares or treasury shares.
No fractional Shares may be issued under the Plan, but the Committee may, in its discretion, pay cash in lieu of any
fractional Share in settlement of an Award.

(e) Individual Option and SAR Limit.  The aggregate number of Shares subject to Options and/or Stock Appreciation
Rights granted during any calendar year to any one Participant shall not exceed 75,000.

5. Eligibility.  Participation in the Plan shall be limited to (i) Service Providers and (ii) any individual the Company
desires to induce to become a Service Provider, so long as any such inducement grant is contingent upon such
individual becoming a Service Provider. The granting of Awards is solely at the discretion of the Committee, except
that Incentive Stock Options may only be granted to Employees.

6. General Terms of Awards.

(a) Award Agreement.  Except for Other Stock-Based Awards that involve only the immediate issuance of unrestricted
and fully vested Shares, each Award shall be evidenced by an Agreement setting forth the number of Shares subject to
the Award together with such other terms and conditions applicable to the Award (and not inconsistent with the Plan)
as determined by the Committee. An Award to a Participant may be made singly or in combination with any form of
Award.

(b) Vesting and Term.  Each Agreement shall set forth the period until the applicable Award is scheduled to expire and
any applicable Performance Period. The Committee may provide for such vesting conditions as it may determine.

(c) Transferability.  Except as provided in this Section 6(c), (i) during the lifetime of a Participant, only the Participant
(or that Participant�s Successor) may exercise an Option or Stock Appreciation Right, or receive payment with respect
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to any other Award; and (ii) no Award may be sold, assigned, transferred, exchanged or encumbered other than to a
Successor in the event of a Participant�s death. Any attempted transfer in violation of this Section 6(c) shall be of no
effect. The Committee may, however, provide in an Agreement or otherwise that an Award (other than an Incentive
Stock Option) may be transferred or assigned pursuant to a divorce decree or a domestic relations order, and may be
transferable, to the extent permitted by law, to a Transferee if the Participant does not receive any consideration for
the transfer. Any Award held by a Transferee shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions that were
applicable to that Award immediately before the transfer thereof to the Transferee. For purposes of any provision of
the Plan relating to notice to a Participant or to acceleration or
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termination of an Award upon the death or termination of employment of a Participant, the references to �Participant�
shall mean the original grantee of an Award and not any Transferee.

(d) Termination of Service.  Unless otherwise provided in an Agreement, and subject to Section 13 of this Plan, if a
Participant�s Service with the Company and all of its Affiliates terminates, the following provisions shall apply (in all
cases subject to the scheduled expiration of an Option or Stock Appreciation Right, as applicable):

(1) Upon termination of Service for Cause, all unexercised Options and SARs and all unvested portions of any other
outstanding Awards shall be immediately forfeited and terminated without consideration.

(2) Upon termination of Service for any other reason, all unvested and unexercisable portions of any outstanding
Awards shall be immediately forfeited and terminated without consideration.

(3) Upon termination of Service for any reason other than Cause, death or Disability, the currently vested and
exercisable portions of Options and SARs may be exercised within three months of the date of such termination.

(4) Upon termination of Service due to death or Disability, the currently vested and exercisable portions of Options
and SARs may be exercised within six months of the date of such termination.

(e) Rights as Stockholder.  No Participant, Successor, or Transferee shall have any rights as a stockholder with respect
to any securities covered by an Award unless and until the date the Participant, Successor, or Transferee becomes the
holder of record of the Shares, if any, to which the Award relates.

(f) Performance-Based Awards.  Any Award may be granted as a performance-based Award if the Committee
establishes one or more Performance Measures upon which vesting, the lapse of restrictions or settlement in cash or
Shares is contingent. With respect to any Award intended to be Performance-Based Compensation, the Committee
shall establish and administer Performance Measures in the manner described in Section 19.

(g) TARP Compliance.  Solely to the extent, and for the period, required under applicable law or agreement on
account of the Company�s participation in the Troubled Assets Relief Program under the Emergency Economic
Stabilization Act of 2008, as amended from time to time (�EESA�), the Plan and each Agreement evidencing an Award
shall be deemed to incorporate by reference the executive compensation and corporate governance standards of
Section 111 of EESA, including any regulation or guidance issued thereunder, and any successor provisions thereto.
The Company shall be deemed to have all such authority or power to limit or demand the forfeiture of any payment or
benefit provided under the Plan or any Agreement, and a Participant�s right to receive or retain any such payment or
benefit shall be deemed limited or forfeited, as the Committee, in its sole judgment, shall deem necessary or advisable
in order to comply with any such standard as in effect from time to time, or to avoid a material adverse effect on the
Company�s tax position.

7. Restricted Stock Awards.

(a) Shares subject to a Restricted Stock Award shall be subject to vesting conditions, and the corresponding lapse or
waiver of forfeiture conditions and other restrictions, based on such factors and occurring over such period of time as
the Committee may determine in its sole discretion. The Committee may provide whether any consideration other than
Services must be received by the Company or any Affiliate as a condition precedent to the grant of a Restricted Stock
Award.

(b) Unvested Shares subject to a Restricted Stock Award shall be evidenced by a book-entry in the name of the
Participant with the Company�s transfer agent or by one or more Common Stock certificates issued in the name of the
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Participant. Any such Common Stock certificate shall be deposited with the Company or its designee, together with an
assignment separate from the certificate, in blank, signed by the Participant, and bear an appropriate legend referring
to the restricted nature of the Restricted Stock evidenced thereby. Any book-entry shall be subject to transfer
restrictions and accompanied by a similar legend. Upon the vesting of Shares of Restricted Stock and the
corresponding lapse of the restrictions and forfeiture conditions, the transfer restrictions and restrictive legend
applicable to any book-entry evidencing such Shares will be removed, or a certificate for the Shares bearing no
restrictive legend shall be delivered to the Participant or a Successor or a Transferee.
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(c) Except as otherwise provided in this Plan or the applicable Agreement, a Participant with a Restricted Stock
Award shall have all the other rights of a stockholder, including the right to receive dividends and the right to vote the
Shares of Restricted Stock. Except as otherwise provided in this Plan or the applicable Agreement, any Shares or
property other than regular cash dividends distributed with respect to unvested Shares subject to a Restricted Stock
Award shall be subject to the same conditions and restrictions as the underlying Shares. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, cash dividends on Shares subject to Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units Awards that have
performance vesting provisions shall be subject to the same conditions and restrictions as the related Shares.

8. Restricted Stock Unit Awards.  A Restricted Stock Unit Award shall be subject to vesting conditions, and the
corresponding lapse or waiver of forfeiture conditions and other restrictions, based on such factors and occurring over
such period of time as the Committee may determine in its discretion. The Committee may provide whether any
consideration other than services must be received by the Company or any Affiliate as a condition precedent to the
grant of a Restricted Stock Unit Award. Following the vesting of a Restricted Stock Unit Award, payment to the
Participant shall be made in the form of cash, Shares or a combination of cash and Shares as determined by the
Committee. Such payment shall either comply with the provisions of Code Section 409A or be made within such time
period after vesting as will qualify such payment for the �short-term deferral� exemption from Code Section 409A.

9. Stock Option Awards.

(a) Type and Exercise Price.  The Agreement pursuant to which an Option is granted shall specify whether the Option
is an Incentive Stock Option or a Non-Statutory Stock Option. The exercise price at which each Share subject to an
Option may be purchased shall be determined by the Committee and set forth in the Agreement, and shall not be less
than the Fair Market Value of a Share on the Grant Date.

(b) Payment of Exercise Price.  The purchase price of the Shares with respect to which an Option is exercised shall be
payable in full at the time of exercise, which may include, to the extent permitted by the Committee, payment under a
broker-assisted sale and remittance program acceptable to the Committee. The purchase price may be paid in cash or,
if the Committee so permits, by withholding Shares otherwise issuable to the Participant upon exercise of the Option
or by delivery to the Company of Shares (by actual delivery or attestation) already owned by the Participant (in each
case, such Shares having a Fair Market Value as of the date the Option is exercised equal to the purchase price of the
Shares being purchased), or a combination thereof, unless otherwise provided in the Agreement. A Participant
exercising an Option shall not be permitted to pay any portion of the purchase price with Shares if, in the opinion of
the Committee, payment in such manner could have adverse financial accounting consequences for the Company.

(c) Exercisability and Expiration.  Each Option shall be exercisable in whole or in part on the terms provided in the
Agreement. No Option shall be exercisable more than seven years after its Grant Date. In no event shall any Option be
exercisable at any time after its scheduled expiration. When an Option is no longer exercisable, it shall be deemed to
have terminated.

(d) No Reload Options.  Options will not be granted under the Plan in consideration for, and the grant of Options will
not be conditioned on, the delivery of Shares to the Company in payment of the exercise price and/or tax withholding
obligation under any other Option.

(e) Incentive Stock Options.

(1) An Option will constitute an Incentive Stock Option only if the Participant receiving the Option is an Employee,
and only to the extent that (i) it is so designated in the applicable Agreement and (ii) the aggregate Fair Market Value
(determined as of Option Grant Date) of the Shares with respect to which Incentive Stock Options held by the
Participant first become exercisable in any calendar year (under the Plan and all other plans of the Company and its
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Incentive Stock Option). To the extent an Option granted to a Participant exceeds this limit, the Option shall be treated
as a Non-Statutory Stock Option.
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(2) No Participant may receive an Incentive Stock Option under the Plan if, immediately after the grant of such
Award, the Participant would own (after application of the rules contained in Code Section 424(d)) Shares possessing
more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or an Affiliate, unless (i) the
option price for that Incentive Stock Option is at least 110% of the Fair Market Value of the Shares subject to that
Incentive Stock Option on the Grant Date and (ii) that Option will expire no later than five years after its Grant Date.

(3) The Agreement covering an Incentive Stock Option shall contain such other terms and provisions that the
Committee determines necessary to qualify the Option as an Incentive Stock Option.

10. Stock Appreciation Rights.

(a) Nature of Award.  An Award of a Stock Appreciation Right shall entitle the Participant (or a Successor or a
Transferee), subject to terms and conditions determined by the Committee, to receive upon exercise of the Stock
Appreciation Right all or a portion of the excess of (i) the Fair Market Value of a specified number of Shares as of the
date of exercise of the Stock Appreciation Right over (ii) a specified exercise price that shall not be less than 100% of
the Fair Market Value of such Shares on the Grant Date of the Stock Appreciation Right.

(b) Exercise of SAR.  Each Stock Appreciation Right may be exercisable in whole or in part at the times, on the terms
and in the manner provided in the Agreement; provided that no Stock Appreciation Right shall be exercisable more
than seven years after its Grant Date. No Stock Appreciation Right shall be exercisable at any time after its scheduled
expiration. When a Stock Appreciation Right is no longer exercisable, it shall be deemed to have terminated. Upon
exercise of a Stock Appreciation Right, payment to the Participant (or a Successor or Transferee) shall be made at
such time or times as shall be provided in the Agreement in the form of cash, Shares or a combination of cash and
Shares as determined by the Committee. The Agreement may provide for a limitation upon the amount or percentage
of the total appreciation on which payment (whether in cash and/or Shares) may be made in the event of the exercise
of a Stock Appreciation Right.

11. Performance Units.

(a) Initial Award.

(1) An Award of Performance Units under the Plan shall entitle the Participant (or a Successor or Transferee) to future
payments of cash, Shares or a combination thereof, as specified by the Committee in the Agreement or otherwise,
based upon the achievement of specified levels of one or more Performance Measures over the course of the relevant
Performance Period. The Agreement shall specify the nature and requisite level(s) of achievement for each
Performance Measure and the length of the Performance Period applicable to an Award of Performance Units, and
may provide that a portion of a Participant�s Award will be paid for performance that exceeds the minimum target but
falls below the maximum target applicable to the Award. The Agreement shall also provide for the timing of the
payment, which shall either comply with the provisions of Code Section 409A or be in a lump sum occurring within
the period necessary to cause it to qualify as a �short-term deferral� within the meaning of Code Section 409A.

(2) Following the conclusion or acceleration of each Performance Period, the Committee shall determine (i) the extent
to which Performance Measures have been attained, (ii) the number of Performance Units that have been earned and
the value thereof, (iii) the extent to which any other terms and conditions with respect to an Award relating to the
Performance Period have been satisfied and (iv) the amount of the payment due with respect to an Award of
Performance Units. Payment to the Participant of any Performance Unit Award shall be made in the form of cash,
Shares or a combination of cash and Shares as determined by the Committee, and shall either comply with the
provisions of Code Section 409A or be made within such time period after vesting as will qualify such payment for
the �short-term deferral� exemption from Code Section 409A.
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(b) Acceleration and Adjustment.  The Agreement may permit an acceleration of the Performance Period and an
adjustment of Performance Measures and payments with respect to some or all of the Performance Units awarded to a
Participant upon the occurrence of certain events, which may include a Change of Control, a Corporate Transaction, a
recapitalization, a change in the accounting practices of the Company, a change in the Participant�s
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title or employment responsibilities, or the Participant�s death or Disability. The Agreement also may provide for a
limitation on the value of an Award of Performance Units that a Participant may receive.

12. Other Stock-Based Awards.  The Committee may from time to time grant Common Stock and other Awards that
are valued by reference to and/or payable in whole or in part in Shares under the Plan. The Committee, in its sole
discretion, shall determine the terms and conditions of such Awards, which shall be consistent with the terms and
purposes of the Plan. The Committee may, in its sole discretion, direct the Company to issue Shares subject to
restrictive legends and/or stop transfer instructions that are consistent with the terms and conditions of the Award to
which the Shares relate.

13. Corporate Transaction.

(a) In the event of a proposed Corporate Transaction, the Committee may, but shall not be obligated to:

(1) With respect to a Corporate Transaction that involves a merger or consolidation, make appropriate provision for
the protection of the outstanding Awards by the substitution of options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock,
restricted stock units, performance units or other stock-based awards and appropriate voting common stock of the
corporation surviving any such merger or consolidation or, if appropriate, the Parent of the Company or such
surviving corporation, in lieu of such outstanding Awards;

(2) With respect to any Corporate Transaction, including, without limitation, a merger or consolidation, declare, prior
to the occurrence of the Corporate Transaction, and provide written notice of such declaration to each holder of an
Option or Stock Appreciation Right, that (i) each outstanding Option and Stock Appreciation Right, whether or not
then exercisable, shall be canceled at the time of, or immediately prior to the occurrence of, the Corporate Transaction
in exchange for payment to each holder of an Option or Stock Appreciation Right, promptly after the Corporate
Transaction, of cash (or, if the Committee so elects in lieu of solely cash, of such form(s) of consideration, including
cash and/or property, solely or in such combination as the Committee shall determine, that the holders of Options and
Stock Appreciation Rights would have received as a result of the Corporate Transaction if such holders had exercised
the Options and Stock Appreciation Rights immediately prior to the Corporate Transaction) equal to, for each Share
covered by a canceled Option or Stock Appreciation Right, the amount, if any, by which the fair market value (as
defined in this Section 13(a)(2)) per Share exceeds the exercise price per Share covered by such Option or Stock
Appreciation Right, and (ii) at the time of the declaration, each Option and Stock Appreciation Right shall
immediately become exercisable in full and each holder of an Option or Stock Appreciation Right shall have the right,
during the period preceding the time of cancellation of the Option or Stock Appreciation Right, to exercise the Option
or Stock Appreciation Right as to all or any part of the Shares covered thereby in whole or in part, as the case may be.
In the event of a declaration pursuant to this Section 13(a)(2), each outstanding Option and Stock Appreciation Right,
to the extent that it shall not have been exercised prior to the Corporate Transaction, shall be canceled at the time of,
or immediately prior to, the Corporate Transaction, as provided in the declaration. For purposes of this Section 13(a)
only, �fair market value� per Share means the fair market value, as determined in good faith by the Committee, of the
consideration to be received per Share by the stockholders of the Company upon the occurrence of the Corporate
Transaction, notwithstanding anything to the contrary provided in this Agreement;

(3) With respect to any Corporate Transaction, including, without limitation, a merger or consolidation, declare, prior
to the occurrence of the Corporate Transaction, and provide written notice of such declaration to each holder of an
Option or Stock Appreciation Right, that (i) each outstanding Option and Stock Appreciation Right then exercisable,
or that becomes exercisable pursuant to the terms of the agreement related to such Option or Stock Appreciation Right
prior to the occurrence of such Corporate Transaction, shall be canceled at the time of, or immediately prior to the
occurrence of, the Corporate Transaction in exchange for payment to each holder of an Option or Stock Appreciation
Right, promptly after the Corporate Transaction, of cash (or, if the Committee so elects in lieu of solely cash, of such
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determine, that the holders of Options and Stock Appreciation Rights would have received as a result of the Corporate
Transaction if such holders had exercised the Options and Stock Appreciation Rights immediately prior to the
Corporate Transaction) equal to, for each Share covered by a canceled Option or Stock Appreciation Right, the
amount, if any, by which the fair market
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value per Share exceeds the exercise price per Share covered by such Option or Stock Appreciation Right, and
(ii) each outstanding Option and Stock Appreciation Right that does not become exercisable prior to the occurrence of
such Corporate Transaction, shall be canceled at the time of, or immediately prior to, the Corporate Transaction
without payment or any other consideration. In the event of a declaration pursuant to this Section 13(a)(3), each
outstanding Option and Stock Appreciation Right, to the extent that it shall not have been exercised prior to the
Corporate Transaction, shall be canceled at the time of, or immediately prior to, the Corporate Transaction, as
provided in the declaration;

(4) With respect to any Corporate Transaction, including, without limitation, a merger or consolidation, declare, prior
to the occurrence of the Corporate Transaction, and provide written notice of such declaration to each holder of an
Option or Stock Appreciation Right, that each outstanding Option and Stock Appreciation Right shall be canceled at
the time of, or immediately prior to the occurrence of, the Corporate Transaction without payment or any other
consideration. In the event of a declaration pursuant to this Section 13(a)(4), each outstanding Option and Stock
Appreciation Right, to the extent that it shall not have been exercised prior to the Corporate Transaction, shall be
canceled at the time of, or immediately prior to, the Corporate Transaction, as provided in the declaration;

(5) With respect to any Corporate Transaction, including, without limitation, a merger or consolidation, declare, prior
to the occurrence of the Corporate Transaction, and provide written notice of such declaration to each holder of an
Option or Stock Appreciation Right, that (i) each outstanding Option and Stock Appreciation Right shall be canceled
at the time of, or immediately prior to the occurrence of, the Corporate Transaction without payment or any other
consideration, and (ii) at the time of the declaration, each Option and Stock Appreciation Right shall immediately
become exercisable in full and each holder of an Option or Stock Appreciation Right shall have the right, during the
period preceding the time of cancellation of the Option or Stock Appreciation Right, to exercise the Option or Stock
Appreciation Right as to all or any part of the Shares covered thereby in whole or in part, as the case may be. In the
event of a declaration pursuant to this Section 13(a)(5), each outstanding Option and Stock Appreciation Right, to the
extent that it shall not have been exercised prior to the Corporate Transaction, shall be canceled at the time of, or
immediately prior to, the Corporate Transaction, as provided in the declaration;

(6) Provide, upon the occurrence of the Corporate Transaction, for the vesting and corresponding waiver of forfeiture
conditions and other restrictions on Restricted Stock Awards or Restricted Stock Unit Awards that are outstanding as
of the occurrence of the Corporate Transaction, and provide for notice thereof to the holders of such Awards; or

(7) Provide that, upon the occurrence of the Corporate Transaction, any portions of any Restricted Stock Awards or
Restricted Stock Unit Awards that are subject to vesting conditions, forfeiture conditions or other restrictions as of the
occurrence of the Corporate Transaction shall be canceled without payment or any other consideration, and provide
for notice thereof to the holders of such Awards.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, no holder of an Award shall be entitled to the payment provided for in this
Section 13 with respect to the any portion of such Award as shall have expired or been forfeited prior to the
occurrence of the applicable Corporate Transaction.

(c) Notwithstanding any provision of Section 13(a) to the contrary, at such time as the Company is a participant in the
Troubled Assets Relief Program under EESA, no action of the Committee taken pursuant to Section 13(a) with respect
to any Award, including, without limitation, the vesting and waiver of forfeiture conditions or other restrictions with
respect to such Award, shall be effective where such action would constitute, or result in, a violation or breach of any
restriction or standard imposed on the Company by law, including any related regulation or guidance, or contract as a
consequence of the Company�s participation in the Troubled Assets Relief Program.
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14. Plan Participation and Service Provider Status.  Status as a Service Provider shall not be construed as a
commitment that any Award will be made under the Plan to that Service Provider or to eligible Service Providers
generally. Nothing in the Plan or in any Agreement or related documents shall confer upon any Service Provider or
Participant any right to Continuous Service with the Company or any Affiliate, nor shall it interfere with or limit in
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any way any right of the Company or any Affiliate to terminate the person�s Continuous Service at any time with or
without Cause or change such person�s compensation, other benefits, job responsibilities or title.

15. Tax Withholding.  The Company or any Affiliate, as applicable, shall have the right to (i) withhold from any cash
payment under the Plan or any other compensation owed to a Participant (including a Successor or a Transferee) an
amount sufficient to cover any required withholding taxes, and (ii) require a Participant or other person receiving
Shares under the Plan to pay a cash amount sufficient to cover any required withholding taxes before actual receipt of
those Shares. In lieu of all or any part of a cash payment from a person receiving Shares under the Plan, the
Committee may permit the individual to cover all or any part of the required withholdings (up to the Participant�s
minimum required tax withholding rate or such other rate that will not trigger a negative accounting impact) through a
reduction in the number of Shares delivered or a delivery or tender to the Company of Shares held by the Participant
or other person, in each case valued in the same manner as used in computing the withholding taxes under applicable
laws.

16. Effective Date, Duration, Amendment and Termination of the Plan.

(a) Effective Date.  The Plan shall become effective on the date it is approved by the requisite vote of the Company�s
stockholders.

(b) Duration of the Plan.  The Plan shall remain in effect until all Shares subject to it shall be distributed, all Awards
have expired or terminated, the Plan is terminated pursuant to Section 16(c), or the tenth anniversary of the date of
stockholder approval of the Plan, whichever occurs first (the �Termination Date�). Awards made before the Termination
Date may be exercised, vested or otherwise effectuated beyond the Termination Date unless limited in the Agreement
or otherwise.

(c) Amendment and Termination of the Plan.  Except as limited in Section 16(d) below, the Board may at any time and
from time to time terminate, suspend or amend the Plan. The Company shall submit any amendment of the Plan to its
stockholders for approval if the rules of the principal securities exchange on which the shares are then listed or other
applicable laws or regulations require stockholder approval of such amendment. No termination, suspension, or
amendment of the Plan or any Agreement may materially and adversely affect any right acquired by any Participant
(or Successor or Transferee) under an Award granted before the date of termination, suspension, or amendment,
unless otherwise agreed to by the Participant in the Agreement or otherwise, or required as a matter of law or
effectuated pursuant to Section 20(e)(5) of this Plan. It will be conclusively presumed that any adjustment for changes
in capitalization provided for in Sections 11(b) or 17, and any amendment to the Plan or any Agreement to avoid the
imposition of any additional tax under Code Section 409A does not adversely affect these rights.

(d) No Option or SAR Repricing.  Except as provided in Section 17, no Option or Stock Appreciation Right granted
under the Plan may be amended to decrease the exercise price thereof, or be cancelled in conjunction with the grant of
any new Option or Stock Appreciation Right with a lower exercise price, or otherwise be subject to any action that
would be treated under accounting rules or otherwise as a �repricing� of such Option or Stock Appreciation Right,
unless such action is approved by the Company�s stockholders.

17. Adjustment for Changes in Capitalization.  In the event of any equity restructuring (within the meaning of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), referred to as �FAS 123R�) that causes the per
share value of Shares to change, such as a stock dividend or stock split, the Committee shall cause there to be made an
equitable adjustment to the number and kind of Shares or other securities issued or reserved for issuance pursuant to
the Plan and to outstanding Awards (including but not limited to the number and kind of Shares to which such Awards
are subject, and the exercise or strike price of such Awards) to the extent such other Awards would not otherwise
automatically adjust in the equity restructuring; provided, in each case, that with respect to Incentive Stock Options,
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no such adjustment shall be authorized to the extent that such adjustment would cause such Incentive Stock Options to
violate Code Section 422(b) or any successor provision; provided further, that no such adjustment shall be authorized
under this Section to the extent that such adjustment would cause an Award to be subject to adverse tax consequences
under Code Section 409A. In the event of any other change in corporate capitalization, which may include a merger,
consolidation, any reorganization (whether or not such reorganization comes within the definition of such term in
Code Section 368), or any partial or complete liquidation of the Company to the extent such events do not constitute
equity restructurings or business combinations within the meaning of FAS 123R, such
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equitable adjustments described in the foregoing sentence may be made as determined to be appropriate and equitable
by the Committee to prevent dilution or enlargement of rights. In either case, any such adjustment shall be conclusive
and binding for all purposes of the Plan. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, the number of Shares subject
to an Award shall always be a whole number.

18. Dividend Equivalents.  An Award (other than an Option or SAR) that does not involve the issuance of Shares
concurrently with the grant of the Award may, if so determined by the Committee, provide the Participant with the
right to receive dividend equivalent payments with respect to Shares subject to the Award (both before and after the
Shares are earned, vested or acquired), which payments may be either made currently, credited to an account for the
Participant, or deemed to have been reinvested in additional Shares which shall thereafter be deemed to be part of and
subject to the underlying Award, including the same vesting and performance conditions. Dividend equivalent
amounts credited to an account for the Participant may be settled in cash or Shares or a combination of both, as
determined by the Committee, and shall be subject to the same vesting and performance conditions as the underlying
Award.

19. Performance-Based Compensation.

(a) Designation of Awards.  If the Committee determines at the time a Full Value Award is granted to a Participant
who is then an executive officer of the Company that such Participant is, or is likely to be, a �covered employee� for
purposes of Code Section 162(m) as of the end of the tax year in which the Company would ordinarily claim a tax
deduction in connection with such Award, then the Committee may provide that this Section 19 will be applicable to
such Award, which shall be considered Performance-Based Compensation.

(b) Performance Measures.  If an Award is subject to this Section 19, then the lapsing of restrictions thereon and the
distribution of cash, Shares or other property pursuant thereto, as applicable, shall be subject to the achievement of
one or more of the Performance Measures specified in the definition of that term in this Plan. When establishing
Performance Measures for a Performance Period, the Committee may exclude amounts or charges relating to an event
or occurrence that the Committee determines, consistent with the requirements of Code Section 162(m), should
appropriately be excluded. The Committee may also adjust Performance Measures for a Performance Period to the
extent permitted by Code Section 162(m) to prevent the dilution or enlargement of a Participant�s rights with respect to
Performance-Based Compensation. The Committee will determine any amount payable in connection with an Award
subject to this Section 19 consistent with the requirements of Code Section 162(m), and may adjust downward, but not
upward, any amount determined to be otherwise payable in connection with such an Award.

(c) Limitations.  Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 17, no Participant may be granted Performance-Based
Compensation in any calendar year with respect to more than 75,000 Shares, for Awards denominated in Shares, and
the maximum dollar value payable to any Participant in any 12 month period with respect to Performance-Based
Compensation denominated in cash is $500,000.

20. Other Provisions.

(a) Unfunded Plan.  The Plan shall be unfunded and the Company shall not be required to segregate any assets that
may at any time be represented by Awards under the Plan. Neither the Company, its Affiliates, the Committee, nor the
Board shall be deemed to be a trustee of any amounts to be paid under the Plan nor shall anything contained in the
Plan or any action taken pursuant to its provisions create or be construed to create a fiduciary relationship between the
Company and/or its Affiliates, and a Participant or Successor or Transferee. To the extent any person has or acquires a
right to receive a payment in connection with an Award under the Plan, this right shall be no greater than the right of
an unsecured general creditor of the Company.
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(b) Limits of Liability.

(1) Any liability of the Company to any Participant or Successor or Transferee with respect to an Award shall be
based solely upon contractual obligations created by the Plan and the Award Agreement.

(2) Except as may be required by law, neither the Company nor any member of the Board or of the Committee, nor
any other person participating (including participation pursuant to a delegation of authority under Section 3(c) of the
Plan) in any determination of any question under the Plan, or in the interpretation, administration or
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application of the Plan, shall have any liability to any party for any action taken, or not taken, in good faith under the
Plan.

(c) Compliance with Applicable Legal Requirements.  No Shares distributable pursuant to the Plan shall be issued and
delivered unless the issuance of the Shares complies with all applicable legal requirements, including compliance with
the provisions of applicable state securities laws, the Securities Act, the Exchange Act and the requirements of the
exchanges on which the Company�s Shares may, at the time, be listed.

(d) Other Benefit and Compensation Programs.  Payments and other benefits received by a Participant under an
Award made pursuant to the Plan shall not be deemed a part of a Participant�s regular, recurring compensation for
purposes of the termination, indemnity or severance pay laws of any country and shall not be included in, nor have
any effect on, the determination of benefits under any other employee benefit plan, contract or similar arrangement
provided by the Company or an Affiliate unless expressly so provided by such other plan, contract or arrangement, or
unless the Committee expressly determines that an Award or portion of an Award should be included to accurately
reflect competitive compensation practices or to recognize that an Award has been made in lieu of a portion of
competitive cash compensation.

(e) Requirements of Law.

(1) To the extent that federal laws do not otherwise control, the Plan and all determinations made and actions taken
pursuant to the Plan shall be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware without regard to its conflicts-of-law
principles and shall be construed accordingly.

(2) If any provision of the Plan shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or invalidity shall not affect
the remaining parts of the Plan, and the Plan shall be construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid provision had
not been included.

(3) It is intended that the Plan and all Awards granted pursuant to it shall be administered by the Committee so as to
permit the Plan and Awards to comply with Exchange Act Rule 16b-3. If any provision of the Plan or of any Award
would otherwise frustrate or conflict with the intent expressed in this Section 20(e)(3), that provision to the extent
possible shall be interpreted and deemed amended in the manner determined by the Committee so as to avoid the
conflict. To the extent of any remaining irreconcilable conflict with this intent, the provision shall be deemed void as
applied to Participants subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act to the extent permitted by law and in the manner
deemed advisable by the Committee.

(4) It is intended that (i) all Awards of Options, SARs and Restricted Stock under the Plan will not provide for the
deferral of compensation within the meaning of Code Section 409A and thereby be exempt from Code Section 409A,
and (ii) all other Awards under the Plan will either not provide for the deferral of compensation within the meaning of
Code Section 409A, or will comply with the requirements of Code Section 409A, and Awards shall be structured and
the Plan administered in accordance with this intent. For Awards subject to Code Section 409A, the following
provisions shall apply:

(A) Separation from Service.  If any amount shall be payable with respect to any Award hereunder as a result of a
Participant�s termination of employment or other service, then notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan, a
termination of employment or other service will be deemed to have occurred only at such time as the Participant has
experienced a �separation from service� as such term is defined for purposes of Code Section 409A.

(B) Timing of Payment to a Specified Employee.  If any amount shall be payable with respect to any Award hereunder
as a result of a Participant�s �separation from service� at such time as the Participant is a �specified employee,� then
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notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan, no payment shall be made, except as permitted under Code
Section 409A, prior to the first day of the seventh (7th) calendar month beginning after the Participant�s separation
from service (or the date of his earlier death). The Company may adopt a specified employee policy that will apply to
identify the specified employees for all deferred compensation plans subject to Code Section 409A; otherwise,
specified employees will be identified using the default standards contained in the regulations under Code
Section 409A.
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(5) It is intended that the Plan, the Awards and any payments made under the Plan or an Award comply with any and
all laws, including any regulation or guidance issued thereunder which may apply to the Company, any Employee or
Board member because of the Company�s participation in the Troubled Assets Relief Program under EESA, and the
Awards shall be structured and the Plan administered in accordance with this intent. The Company shall have the right
to amend this Plan or any Agreement without the consent of the affected Participant, at any time and from time to
time, as the Company, in its sole judgment, shall deem necessary or advisable in order to comply with any such law or
to avoid a material adverse effect on the Company�s tax position. If the making of any payment or the provision of any
benefit under this Plan or any Agreement would be in violation of any such law or would, the Committee�s sole
judgment, have a material adverse effect on the Company�s tax position, or if the making of such payment or provision
of such benefit may, in the Committee�s sole judgment, limit or adversely impact the ability of the Company to
participate in, or the terms of the Company�s participation in, any program offered under EESA by the Treasury or to
qualify for any other relief under EESA, each affected Participant shall be deemed to have waived his right to such
payment or such benefit, or portion thereof, under this Plan or the Agreement.
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HMN FINANCIAL, INC.
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Tuesday, April 28, 2009
10:00 a.m.

1016 Civic Center Drive NW
Rochester, Minnesota

HMN Financial, Inc.
1016 Civic Center Drive N.W.
Rochester, Minnesota 55901-6057 proxy

This proxy is solicited by the Board of Directors for use at the Annual Meeting on Tuesday, April 28, 2009.
The shares of stock you hold in your account will be voted as you specify on the reverse side.
If no choice is specified, the proxy will be voted �FOR� Items 1, 2, 3 and 4.
By signing the proxy, you revoke all prior proxies and appoint Timothy R. Geisler and Jon J. Eberle, and each of them
with full power of substitution, to vote your shares on the matters shown on the reverse side and any other matters
which may come before the Annual Meeting and all adjournments.

Vote by Internet, Telephone or Mail
24 Hours a Day, 7 Days a Week

Your phone or Internet vote authorizes the named proxies to vote your shares
in the same manner as if you marked, signed and returned your proxy card.

INTERNET
www.eproxy.com/hmnf

PHONE
1-800-560-1965

MAIL

Use the Internet to vote your proxy
until 12:00 p.m. (CT) on

April 27, 2009.

Use a touch-tone telephone to
vote your proxy until 12:00 p.m.

(CT) on April 27, 2009.

Mark, sign and date your proxy
card and return it in the

postage-paid envelope provided.

Please have your proxy card and the
last four digits of your Social

Security
Number or Tax Identification

Number
available. Follow the simple

instructions
to obtain your records and create an

electronic ballot.

Please have your proxy card and the
last four digits of your Social

Security
Number or Tax Identification

Number
available. Follow the simple

instructions
the voice provides you.

If you vote your proxy by Internet or by Telephone, you do NOT need to mail back your Voting Instruction
Card.
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Address Change? Mark Box to the right and Indicate changes
below: o

ADDRESS BLOCK

COMPANY #

TO VOTE BY
INTERNET OR
TELEPHONE, SEE
REVERSE SIDE OF
THIS PROXY CARD.

TO VOTE BY MAIL AS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS ON ALL ITEMS BELOW, SIMPLY
SIGN, DATE, AND RETURN THIS PROXY CARD.

The Board of Directors Recommends a Vote FOR Items 1, 2, 3 and 4.

1. Election of directors: 01 Mahlon C. Schneider o Vote FOR o Vote WITHHELD
02 Hugh C. Smith all nominees from all nominees

(except as marked)

(Instructions: To withhold authority to vote for any indicated nominee, write
the number(s) of the nominee(s) in the box provided to the right.)

 Please fold here � Do not separate

2. The ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as
the independent registered public accounting firm of
the Company for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2009.

o For o Against o Abstain

3. The approval of the HMN Financial, Inc. 2009
Equity Incentive Plan.

o For o Against o Abstain

4. The approval, in an advisory (non-binding) vote, of
the compensation of executives, as disclosed in the
proxy statement.

o For o Against o Abstain

5. In their discretion, the proxies are authorized to vote
on any other business that may properly come before
the Meeting, or any adjournments or postponements
thereof.

THIS PROXY WHEN PROPERLY EXECUTED WILL BE VOTED AS DIRECTED OR, IF NO
DIRECTION IS GIVEN, WILL BE VOTED FOR EACH PROPOSAL.
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Date                                                             

Signature(s) in Box

Please sign exactly as your name(s) appears on
Proxy. If held in joint tenancy, all persons should
sign. Trustees, administrators, etc., should include
title and authority. Corporations should provide full
name of corporation and title of authorized officer
signing the Proxy.
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